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Введение

Изучение иностранных языков является составной частью подготовки специалистов широкого профиля, позволяя вести профессиональную деятельность посредством иноязычного общения и изучения специальной литературы на иностранном языке.

Настоящее учебно-методическое пособие представляет собой коррективный курс по грамматике английского языка и предназначено для студентов неязыкового вуза. Материал, содержащийся в пособии, направлен на систематизацию знаний по грамматике и  создание необходимой языковой базы по английскому языку. Целесообразность использования данного курса обусловлена неудовлетворительной подготовкой абитуриентов.

Структура курса


Настоящее методическое пособие включает:

- грамматический справочный материал,

- тренировочные упражнения для закрепления по каждой теме.

Содержание обучения


Содержание обучения иностранному языку как средству общения определяется основными видами речевой деятельности. Изучение данного курса способствует формированию следующих умений и навыков:

Чтение - умение фонетически правильно читать и извлекать информацию из иноязычного текста; использование различных видов чтения (просмотрового, ознакомительного и изучающего) в зависимости от поставленной цели при выполнении грамматических упражнений.

Перевод - адекватная передача смысла прочитанного предложения или текста (при необходимости).

Говорение - участие в беседе на закрепление правила и при выполнении устных упражнений имитационного характера.

Аудирование - восприятие на слух ключевой информации прочитанного текста, понимание вопросов по теме.

Письмо - представление на письме необходимого языкового материала (выполнение письменных упражнений).

Лингвистический материал

Грамматика:  Глагол (особенности английского глагола; английский оборот, система видовременных форм глагола в действительном и страдательном залоге;  неличные формы глагола; модальные глаголы)


Существительное (множественное число)

Местоимения

Прилагательное (степени сравнения)

Порядок слов в повествовательном и вопросительном предложениях

Типы условных предложений

Лексика: закрепление наиболее употребительной лексики на социально-бытовую тематику.

Unit 1 

§ 1. Порядок слов в английском повествовательном предложении

В английском языке повествовательные предложения имеют твердый порядок слов, то есть каждый член предложения имеет свое определенное место:

1 – подлежащее, 2 – сказуемое, 3 – дополнение, 4 – обстоятельства.

Определение не имеет постоянного места и может стоять при любом члене предложения, выраженном существительным:

I       bought    a   new           car      yesterday.

1          2      определение       3            4

Я купил новую машину вчера.

Если существительное определяется двумя или более прилагательными, то из них, которое более тесно связано с ним по смыслу, ставится ближе к существительному:

A new red car - новая красная машина

Если в предложении два или более обстоятельств, они располагаются в следующем порядке: 

а) обстоятельство образа действия; б) обстоятельство места; в) обстоятельство времени.   Обстоятельство времени может занимать и нулевое место перед подлежащим:

 Yesterday   I    bought    a   new   car. 

     0             1       2                 3

§ 2. Глагол to be

В качестве смыслового глагола to be имеет значение «быть, находиться».
Глагол to be употребляется, когда мы говорим о:

1) возрасте: I am seventeen. – Мне 17. 

2) национальности: We are Russian. – Мы русские.

3) профессии или роде деятельности: I am a student and my sister is an economist. – Я студент, а моя сестра – экономист. 

4) гражданском состоянии: They are married. – Они женаты. 

5) свойстве: The weather is fine. – Погода прекрасная. 
6) местонахождении: We are in the classroom. – Мы в классе. 

Формы глагола to be

	 
	Present Simple
	Past Simple
	Future Simple

	Утвердительная

форма
	I            am

he

she          is
it

we

you       are

they


	I 

he

she          was
it

we

you         were

they
	I        shall be

he

she     will be
it

we     shall be

you 

they   will be

	Отрицательная

форма
	I           am not
he

she        is not
it          (isn’t)
we

you      are not

they     (aren’t)


	I 

he         was not
she        (wasn’t)
it     

we

you       were not

they     (weren’t)
	I       shall not (shan’t) be
he

she    will not (won’t) be
it

we    shall not  be
you 

they   will not  be

	Вопросительная

форма
	 Am     I?

             he

  Is        she?
             it

            we

  Are   you ?

            they
	              I 

              he

Was      she  ? 
              it

             we

Were    you ?

              they
	Shall      I     be?

               he

Will       she   be?
               it

Shall     we   be?

Will      you  be?

              they


I’m tired but I’m not hungry. – Я устал, но я не голоден.

Is this seat free? – Это место свободно?

The hotel was very comfortable and it wasn’t expensive. – Наш отель был очень удобным и недорогим. 
Was the weather good when you were in Sochi? – Погода была хорошая, когда вы были в Сочи? 

She won’t be in Moscow next week. She will be in Paris. – На следующей неделе ее не будет в Москве. Она будет в Париже. 

Will you be at home at 3 tomorrow? – Ты будешь дома завтра в 3?

Краткие ответы:

	
	Present Simple
	Past Simple
	Future Simple

	Утвердительный ответ
	Yes,  I          am.

         he

Yes, she       is. 

         it

        we

Yes, you     are. 

         they
	         I          

         he

Yes, she       was. 

         it

         we

Yes, you     were. 

         they
	Yes,  I          shall.

         we

         he

         she        

Yes,  it         will.

          you     

         they

	Отрицательный ответ
	No,   I’m not.

         he 

No,  she   isn’t. 

         it

         we

No,  you    aren’t. 

         they
	         I          

         he

No, she       wasn’t. 

         it

         we

No, you     weren’t. 

         they
	No,  I          shan’t.

         we

         he

         she        

No,   it         won’t.

          you     

         they


“Is Ann at work?” – “No, she isn’t.”– “Анна на работе?” – “Нет”.

“Were they at the party?” – “Yes, they were”. – “Они были на вечеринке?” – “Да”. 

“Will you be free tomorrow?” – “No, I shan’t.” – “Ты будешь свободен завтра?” – “Нет.” 

Словосочетания с глаголом to be
To be present / absent – присутствовать/ отсутствовать

To be well / ill – чувствовать себя хорошо/ быть больным

To be busy / free – быть занятым/ свободным

To be in / out – быть/ не быть на месте

To be afraid of – бояться к-л
To be fond of – увлекаться ч-л
To be interested in – интересоваться ч-л
To be tired – уставать
To be hungry – быть голодным
To be sure – быть уверенным
To be married – быть женатым
To be over – заканчиваться
Упражнения:

I. Вставьте глаголы am, is, are.

1. The weather … very nice today. 2. I … not tired. 3. The dog … asleep. 4. I … hot. Can you open the window? 5. This castle … one thousand years old. 6. My brother and I … good tennis players. 7. Ann … at home but her children … at school. 8. I … a student. My sister … an architect. 9. The shops … not open today. 10. Those flowers … very beautiful. 

II. Напишите утвердительные или отрицательные предложения в зависимости от смысла.

1. Paris … the capital of France. 2. I … interested in football. 3. I … hungry. 4. It … warm today. 5. Rome … in Spain. 6. I … afraid of dogs. 7. Motor-racing … a dangerous sport. 8. Cats … big animals. 9. I … Russian. 10. My brother … a policeman.

III. Вставьте глаголы am, is, are в следующих вопросительных предложениях.

1. … your mother at home? 2. … your parents at home? 3. …  this hotel expensive? 4. … you interested in art? 5. … the shops open today? 6. … the park open today? 7. … your wife a teacher? 8. … it cold in your room? 9. … he English? 10. … these your shoes?

IV. Дайте краткие ответы на вопросы.

1. Are you married? 2. Are you tall? 3. Is it cold today? 4. Are you a teacher? 5. Are you tired? 6. Is it dark now? 7. Are your hands cold? 8. Are you hungry? 9. Is your mother tall? 10. Is it sunny?

V. Вставьте глаголы was/were в утвердительной или отрицательной форме в зависимости от смысла предложения. Предложения переведите на русский язык. 

1. We didn’t like our hotel room. It … very small and it … very clean. 2. Kate got married when she … 24 years old. 3. I phoned you yesterday evening but you … at home. Where … you? 4. George … at work last week because he … ill. He’s better now. 5. The shops … open yesterday because it … a public holiday. 6. “… you at home at 9.30?” – “No, I … at work.” 

VI. Вставьте глаголы am, is, are, was, were. Некоторые предложения стоят в прошедшем времени, некоторые в настоящем. 

1. Last year she … 22, so she … 23 now. 2. Today the weather … nice, but yesterday it … cold. 3. I … hungry last night, so I had something to eat. 4. Don’t buy these shoes. They … too expensive. 5. Why … you so angry yesterday? 6. We must go now. It … very late. 7. This time last year I … in Paris. 8. “Where … the children?” – “I don’t know. They … in the garden ten minutes ago”. 9. When I … a child, I … afraid of dogs. 10. Moscow … the capital of Russia. 

VII. Переведите предложения на английский язык, употребляя глагол to be в:

a) Present Simple

1. Моя мама дизайнер. Её сейчас нет дома. Она на работе. 2. Где мои книги? Они на полке. 3. Кто ваш отец? – Он офицер. 4. Вы врач? - Нет, я студент. 5. Где вы сейчас  Я на работе. 6. Чьи это вещи? – Это мои вещи. 7. Это ваше пальто? – Нет, не мое.                                                                                                                   

b) Past Simple
1. Моя бабушка была учителем. 2. Нас вчера не было дома. 3. Мы были в театре. 4. Вы вчера были на работе? – Нет, не был. Я был болен. 5. Я думал, что она была в  кино вчера, а она была в библиотеке. 6. Его родители были учёными. 7. Они не были вчера в зоопарке.

c) Future Simple
1. Я буду завтра в институте. 2. Она будет зубным врачом. 3. Где ты будешь завтра? – Я буду дома. 4. Мы будем в Москве на следующей неделе. 5. Его не будет на работе завтра. Он будет в командировке. 6. Позвони ему позже. Может быть, он будет дома. 7. Завтра никого не будет в офисе.

VIII. Вставьте глагол to be в нужной видовременной форме.

1. I … hungry last night, so I had something to eat. 2. How old ... you? How old ... your brother? 3. What ... your aunt’s name? 4. I ... glad to see you. How ... you? 5. The shops … (not) open yesterday because it … a public holiday. 6. Tom’s group-mates ... lawyers in three years. 7. ... your father a carpenter? - No, he ... a driver. 8. John ... (not) a student, he ... a doctor. 9. That book ... (not) very interesting. 10. Moscow ... the capital of Russia. 11. I ... hot. Open the window, please. 12. What ... the weather like yesterday? 13. I ... (not) interested in football at all. 14. ... Tom and Bob good tennis players? 15. I phoned you yesterday evening but you … (not) at home. 16. What ... your parents’ address? 17. Last year she … 17, so she ... 18 years old now. 18. Peter … a five-year student in two years. 19. They ... (not) at home now.  20. It ... time to have a break. 21. Today the weather … fine, but yesterday it … cold. 22. I ... a student. My sister ... an architect. 23. My brother and I ... bad tennis players. 24. We must go. It … late soon. 25. This case ... very heavy. These cases ... very heavy. 26. The dog ... asleep when I came home. 27. Ann … (not) at work last week because she … ill. She … better now. 28. Ann ... at home but her children ... at school. 29. She ... an economist next year. 30. Wealth ... nothing without health. 31. Nothing ... so rare as complete honesty.

IX. Переведите предложения на английский язык.

1. Мы не ученики, мы студенты. 2. Мы не будем инженерами, мы будем экономистами. 3. Этот текст был трудным для перевода. 4. Ее родители учителя. 5. Мой дядя предприниматель. 6. Моего школьного друга звали Александр. 7. Мне 17 лет. 8. Я высокий и стройный. 9. Завтра я буду в школе до обеда. 10. Мое хобби - плавание. 11. Моя сестра сейчас в магазине. 12. Моя сестра была в театре вчера. 13. Моя сестра будет в библиотеке завтра. 14. Сегодня мы  Москве, а завтра будем в Туле. 15. Вчера он был за городом, а сегодня он уже дома. 16. Она была учителем в прошлом году, а сейчас она переводчик. 17. Она на работе сейчас, а вечером она будет у родителей. 18. Твоя сестра будет учителем? – Нет, она будет журналистом. 19. Нас не будет дома завтра. 20. Кто будет здесь завтра? - Я буду.

X. Раскройте скобки, употребив нужную форму глагола to be. Переведите английские пословицы и подберите их русские эквиваленты.

1. Appearances (to be) deceitful. 2. A friend in need (to be) a friend indeed. 3. All (to be) well that ends well. 4. Time (to be) money. 5. Brevity (to be) the soul of wit. 6. Custom (to be) the second nature.

XI. Составьте предложения с глаголом to be.

1. my hands / cold. 2. my daughter / six years old. 3. I / a student / now. 4. Paris / in Africa. 5. you / hungry? 6. she / a teacher? 7. diamonds / cheap. 8. the USA / a very big country. 9. those flowers / very beautiful. 10. how old / your father?

§ 3.  Оборот there+be
Оборот there+be имеет значение «есть, находится, имеется, существует». Оборот стоит в начале предложения, за ним ставится подлежащее. Глагол  to be ставится в личной форме и согласуется с последующим существительным. 

Present Simple

Past Simple

Future Simple

Ед. ч.

there is

there was

there will be

Множ. ч.

there are

there were  
Перевод таких предложений надо начинать с обстоятельства места или времени, или со сказуемого, если обстоятельство отсутствует.

There is a telephone in the room. – В комнате есть телефон.

There was a meeting at the Institute yesterday. –  Вчера в институте было собрание.

There are different methods of learning words. – Существуют различные способы заучивания слов.

В вопросительном предложении глагол в личной форме ставится на первое место перед there:

Вопрос






Ответ
Is there a telephone in the room?


Yes, there is. No, there isn’t.

Was there a meeting at the Institute yesterday? Yes, there was. No, there wasn’t.

В будущем времени на первое место ставится вспомогательный глагол will:

Will there be many people at the party?

Yes, there will. No, there won’t.

Отрицательные предложения могут быть построены двумя способами:

1) при помощи отрицательной частицы not, которая ставится после глагола:

There isn’t a telephone in the room.

There wasn’t any meeting yesterday.

There won’t be any people at the party.

2) при помощи отрицательного местоимения no, которое ставится перед существительным:

There is no telephone in the room.

There was no meeting yesterday.

There will be no people at the party.

Перед many, much, some, any и числительными вместо no ставится not.

Упражнения:

I. Переведите следующие предложения на русский язык.

1. There are seven days in a week.  2. There are nine planets in our solar system.  3. There are two alternatives in this situation.  4. Is there anything to read about education in Britain in this library?  5. There are 16 faculties in this University.  6. There are many things children first learn at school. 

II. Преобразуйте следующие предложения в вопросительные и отрицательные.

1. There is a blackboard in our classroom.  2. There is a map on the wall.  3. There is a desk in his room.  4. There are some pictures on the wall.  5. There are two windows in our classroom.  6. There are three bedrooms in their flat. 7. There is a lot of discussion about language learning now.  8. There are some courses for beginners at the University.  9. There are some booklets here.  10. There is some sense in what he proposes.

III. Преобразуйте следующие предложения по данному образцу.


There is a pencil on his desk. (some)


There are some pencils on his desk.

1. There is an English textbook on the teacher’s desk. (some)  2.There is a girl in the classroom. (ten)  3.There is a bedroom in their flat. (two)  4.There is a magazine on her desk. (some)

IV. Ответьте на вопросы. Употребите в ответах числительные, стоящие в скобках.


How many English magazines are there on her desk? (4)


There are four magazines on her desk.

1. How many students are there in the classroom? (12) 2. How many bedrooms are there in their flat? (3) 3. How many bookshelves are there in his bedroom? (8) 4. How many English books are there in his room? (18)  

V. Составьте предложения с оборотом there + be.
а) в настоящем времени:

Образец:
There is a small table in the corner of the room.

There are flowers in the room.

(a history faculty in the University, economics department, a good hotel in our town, several colleges in the Academy, a blackboard in the classroom, a lots of books in our library, many pictures on the wall).

б) в прошедшем времени:

Образец:
There was a meeting here.

(a car, a boat, a high tree, a bus stop, an old house, a big box, a small lake).

в) в будущем времени:

Образец:
There will be a new shop in our street.

(a big stadium in our town, a large park here, lots of beautiful houses, green trees, many people at the city square tonight, a new cinema-house).

VI. Составьте предложения.

Образец: in the office, there is, for you, a message. 



There is a message for you in the office.

1. children, there aren’t, the classroom, in, any, now. 2. three, in this town, there are, secondary schools. 3. ten, there are, students, in the group. 4. any, mistakes, there aren’t, your, in, essay. 5. work, there is, tonight, to be done, a lot of work.

VII. Переведите следующие предложения на английский язык.

1. На столе (лежат) книги и тетради. 2. В этой книге несколько интересных рассказов. 3. Есть люди, которые знают более 10 иностранных языков. 4. В учебном году два семестра. 5. В аудитории нет студентов. 6. В его контрольной работе было несколько ошибок. 7. В доме есть лифт. 8. Возле дома находится сад. 9. В деревне есть школа? - Нет. 10. В библиотеке будет много новых книг. 

§ 4. Глагол to have 

В качестве смыслового глагола to have переводится «иметь». В Present, Past и Future Simple глагол to have имеет следующие формы:

	
	Present Simple
	Past Simple
	Future Simple

	Утвердительная

форма
	I            have

he

she          has
it

we

you       have

they


	I 

he

she         
it              had
we

you       
they
	I        shall have

he

she     will have
it

we     shall have

you 

they   will have


Вопросительная форма может быть образована двумя способами:
1)  путем постановки глагола to have перед подлежащим:

Have you a car? - У вас есть машина?

Had you a lecture yesterday? – У вас была вчера лекция?

Will you have a meeting tomorrow? – У вас будет завтра собрание?

2)  с помощью вспомогательного глагола to do (в устойчивых сочетаниях):

Does he have English classes every day? – Он занимается английским каждый день?

Отрицательные предложения могут быть построены двумя способами:

1)  при помощи отрицательной частицы not, которая ставится после глагола:

I have not (haven’t) a car.

I had not (hadn’t) any lectures yesterday.

I shall not have any time tomorrow.

2) при помощи отрицательного местоимения no, которое ставится перед существительным:

I have no car.

I had no lectures yesterday.

I shall have no time tomorrow.

Если глагол to have входит в состав устойчивых сочетаний, то отрицательная форма образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to do:

 We didn’t have supper at home yesterday.

В разговорной речи вместо to have часто употребляется форма to have got:

I’ve got a car.

Have you got a car?

I haven’t got a car.

Устойчивые сочетания с глаголом to have
To have breakfast, supper, dinner – завтракать, обедать, ужинать
To have a cup of coffee – выпить чашку кофе
To have a bath, a shower, a wash – принимать ванну, душ, мыться
To have a talk – поговорить
To have a good time – хорошо проводить время
To have a rest – отдыхать
To have classes – заниматься
To have a headache – испытывать головную боль
To have a walk – погулять
To have a smoke – покурить
Упражнения:

I. Прочитайте и переведите следующие предложения. Поставьте предложения в прошедшее и будущее время. 

a) 1. I have a large family. 2. My sister has a small family. 3. Ann has two brothers. 4. My friend has a sister and a brother. 5. John has three children. 6. I have some French magazines. 7. They have a three-room flat. 8. He has some thick notebooks.

b) 1. I have no brother. 2. My sister hasn’t a family. 3. They haven’t any French books. 4. We have no coffee at home. 5. He hasn’t any newspapers. 6. She has no butter at home. 

c) 1. “Have you a large family?” – “Yes, I have. I have a wife and four children.” 2. “Has Helen a brother?” – “No, she hasn’t. She has a sister.” 3. “Have you any thin notebooks?” – “No, I haven’t.” 4. “Has she a green coat?” – “yes, she has.” 5. “Have you any butter at home?” – “Yes, I have.” 6. “Has she any coffee at home?” – “No, she hasn’t. She has no coffee at home.”

II. Переделайте предложения по образцу.

a) My friend has a son. – My friend hasn’t a son. My friend has no son.

1. Peter has a brother. 2. John has a sister. 3. Jane has a cat. 4. Paul has a dog. 5. Ann has a pencil.  6. They have four English textbooks.

b) Ann has a brother. (Yes) – “Has Ann a brother?” “Yes, she has.”

1. Jane has a sister. (Yes) 2. Tom has two brothers. (Yes) 3. His friend has a sister. (No) 4. My brother has some English books and magazines. (Yes) 5. They have some friends at school. (Yes) 6. We have some coffee at home. (No) 7. Jane has some tea in her cup. (Yes)

III. Вставьте глагол to have в нужной видовременной форме.

1.  They ... a four-room flat. 2. My friend ... (not) a large family. 3. ... he any English books at home? 4. We ... a new car next year. 5. She ... (not) a TV set at home a year ago. 6. ... you a dog? 7. John ... some problems last week. 8. My sister ... English classes twice a week. 9. My mother ... a bad headache yesterday. 10. Maggie and her sister ... wonderful voices. 11. Our family ... a nice house in the country. 12. ... George any brothers or sisters? 13. We ... (not) a car but we are going to buy it. 14. ... Peter any milk in the fridge?

IV. Закончите предложения. Используйте выражения из списка и, где необходимо, поставьте глагол в нужную форму.

have a cigarette

have a nice time

have a shower


have a good flight

have a swim


have a look

have a rest


have a chat

have a party


have a baby

1. David likes to keep fit, so he ... every day. 2. We ... last Saturday. It was great - we invited lots of people. 3. Excuse me, can I ... at your newspaper, please? 4. ‘Where’s Jim?’  “He ... in his room. He’s very tired.’ 5. I met Ann in the supermarket yesterday. We stopped and ... . 6. I haven’t seen you since you came back from holiday.  ...? 7. Suzanne ... a few days ago. It’s her second child. 8. I don’t usually smoke but I was feeling very nervous, so I ... . 9. The phone rang but I couldn’t answer it because I ... . 10. You meet Tom at the airport. He has just arrived. You say: “Hello, Tom. ....?”

V. Переведите предложения на английский язык.

1. У меня дома есть интересные книги по философии. 2. У вас есть деньги? - Нет. 3. У меня сейчас нет времени. 4. У моего брата хорошая библиотека. 5. У нее два брата и сестра. 6. У вас есть домашние животные? – Да. 7. У моего дяди будет новая квартира. 8. У меня было много друзей в университете. 9. Завтра у них будет диктант. 10. У моих друзей есть двое детей. 

VI. Составьте предложения с глаголом to have.

1. I / a camera. 2. your father / a car. 3. Carol / many friends. 4. how much money / you? 5. what kind of car / John? 6. they / any children? 7. Jim / not / a sister. 8. I / not / any brothers and sisters. 9. my friend / not / pets. 10. we / three dogs and two cats.

Unit 2

§ 1. Имя существительное

Именем существительным называется часть речи, которая отвечает на вопросы кто? что? и обозначает предмет.

Имена существительные делятся на имена собственные и нарицательные.

Имена собственные представляют собой названия предметов, единственных в своем роде: the Volga, London, и личные имена: Peter, John Smith.  Собственные имена существительные пишутся с большой буквы.

Нарицательные имена существительные представляют собой общее название для всех однородных предметов: a boy, a country, a house.

Нарицательные имена существительные делятся на исчисляемые (названия предметов, которые можно пересчитать: a book, a table)  и неисчисляемые (названия предметов, которые нельзя пересчитать: snow, coal, information, knowledge).

Большинство исчисляемых существительных в английском языке имеет два числа: единственное и множественное.

Образование множественного числа имен существительных

Имена существительные образуют множественное число путем прибавления к форме единственного числа окончания –s: boy – boys, table – tables, cat – cats.

Имена существительные, оканчивающиеся на –s, -ss, -ch, -sh, -x, то есть на шипящий или свистящий звук, образуют множественное число путем прибавления окончания –es: class – classes, box – boxes.

Имена существительные, оканчивающиеся на –y с предшествующей согласной, принимают во множественном числе окончание –es, а буква  y меняется на i: city – cities, army – armies. Но если перед -y стоит гласная, то при прибавлении окончания -s она остается без изменений: day – days, toy – toys.

Имена существительные, оканчивающиеся на –o, образуют множественное число путем прибавления –es: hero - heroes, tomato – tomatoes. Исключения: существительные piano  и photo принимают во множественном числе окончание –s: pianos, photos.

Имена существительные, оканчивающиеся на –f, -fe, образуют множественное число путем изменения f на v и прибавления окончания -(e)s: leaf – leaves, knife – knives, wife – wives. Однако некоторые существительные, оканчивающиеся на –f, -fe, образуют множественное число только путем прибавления окончания –s: roof – roofs, safe – safes, chief – chiefs, handkerchief – handkerchiefs.

Некоторые имена существительные образуют формы множественного числа не путем прибавления окончания –s, а путем изменения корневых гласных:

man – men

woman – women

foot – feet

tooth – teeth

goose – geese

mouse – mice

ox – oxen

child – children

Существительные sheep (овца), fish (рыба), deer (олень) имеют одну и ту же форму для единственного и множественного числа. 

Имена существительные, употребляющиеся только в единственном числе

1. Неисчисляемые имена существительные;

2. Существительные advice (совет), information (информация), progress (успех), knowledge (знания):

 He gave some good advice. – Он дал мне несколько хороших советов.

3. Существительное news – новость, новости: 

The news is sad. - Новости печальные.

4. Названия наук, оканчивающиеся на –ics: 

Mathematics is my favourite subject. – Математика – мой любимый предмет.

5. Существительные money (деньги), hair (волосы), fruit (фрукты):

Her hair is dark. – Ее волосы темные.

Имена существительные, употребляющиеся только во множественном числе

1. Парные предметы: scissors (ножницы), trousers (брюки), spectacles/glasses (очки), shorts (шорты) etc.

2. Существительные: goods (товары), contents (содержание), clothes (одежда), wages (зарплата), riches (богатство).

3. Собирательные существительные: people (люди), police (полиция), cattle (скот).

Упражнения:

I. Образуйте множественное число следующих существительных.

1. carpet, glass, photo, box, lady, wife, valley, thief, man, woman.

2. child, foot, tooth, life, tomato, scar, sheep, ship, deer, coat.

II. Напишите единственное число следующих существительных.

1. children, knives, plays, books, pianos, oxen, countries, mice, families,  sandwiches.

2. shelves, potatoes, days, geese, flowers, cars, watches, women, shops, cities.

§2. Категория падежа в английском языке

В отличие от русского языка, в английском имеется лишь два падежа: общий и притяжательный. Существительное в общем падеже не имеет специальных окончаний.

Притяжательный падеж обозначает принадлежность предмета кому-либо. Существительное в притяжательном падеже является определением к другому существительному, всегда ставится перед ним и  отвечает на вопрос «чей?».

Форма притяжательного падежа единственного числа образуется путем прибавления –’s к существительному: the girl’s hat – шляпа девочки, Jack’s friend – друг Джека.

К существительному, стоящему во множественном числе, прибавляется только апостроф -’: the boys’father – отец мальчиков, my parents’ house – дом моих родителей.

Если существительное во множественном числе не имеет окончания –s, то притяжательный падеж образуется как в единственном числе (-’s): the children’s toys – игрушки детей.

Если два лица являются обладателями одного предмета, то окончание -’s прибавляется к последнему существительному: Peter and Helen’s flat – квартира Петра и Елены.

Отношение принадлежности может быть также выражено при помощи предлога of: my sister’s book =  the book of my sister.

Упражнения:

I. Образуйте форму притяжательного падежа.

1. Ross, address; a week, holiday; my relatives, house; A. Christie, novels; Alex, disks. 

2. my sisters, room; a woman, magazine; children, toys; teenagers, music; my friends, party.

II. Замените фразы с предлогом of на существительные в притяжательном падеже.

1. the name of my friend; the speech of the leader; the life of the students; the rights of people; the friends of my sisters.

2. the toys of my baby; the books of my sons; the children of my uncle; the hobby of my parents; the roof of the house.

III. Замените предложные фразы существительными в притяжательном падеже в следующих предложениях.

1. The book of this writer is interesting. 2. The foot of my son is big. 3. The prospects of the company are good. 4. These are the notebooks of his students.5. The uncle of my friend is a doctor. 6. The favourite sport of my brother is tennis. 7. The roof of the house is red. 8. The dresses of the girls are good. 9. Where is the key of the car? 10. The shop for men is open.

IV. Переведите на английский язык.

1. сын моего друга; сыновья моих друзей; книга моего учителя; книги моих учителей; друг моей сестры. 

2. друзья моих сестер; имя врача; дети моих дяди и тети; дочь моего брата; племянницы моих друзей.

§3. Артикль

Артикль – это служебное слово, поясняющее имя существительное. В английском языке есть два вида артикля:

1) неопределенный: a(an). Форма a употребляется перед существительными единственного числа, начинающимися с согласной буквы, an – с гласной и буквы h, если она не читается: a table, a pen; an apple, an hour.

2) определенный:  the. Определенный артикль употребляется с существительными единственного и множественного числа. 

Употребление неопределенного артикля

1. Когда существительное упоминается впервые: 

He bought a book yesterday.

2. Существительное служит в предложении именной частью составного сказуемого: 

My brother is a doctor. 

Перед существительными множественного числа в таких предложениях артикль отсутствует: My brothers are doctors.

3. После оборотов it is…, this is…, there is…: 

It is a pen. This is a pen. There is a telephone in the room.

4. В сочетаниях с глаголами to have, to take, to give: 

to have a cold, to take a shower, to give a hand.

5. В восклицательных предложениях перед исчисляемыми существительными в единственном числе после слов what (какой), such (такой), quite (совсем): 

What a clever man! She is such a beautiful woman! She is quite a young girl! 

Но: перед неисчисляемыми существительными и существительными во множественном числе артикль не употребляется: What important people! What fine weather!

Употребление определенного артикля

1. Существительное упоминается в контексте второй раз: 

I saw a new film yesterday. The film was interesting.

2. Существительное имеет при себе определение, выделяющее его из ряда других предметов:

 Show me the telegram that you received yesterday. 

3. Когда говорящему ясно из ситуации, о каком предмете идет речь:

 Open the window, please.

4. Существительное является единственным в своем роде:

 The Earth is millions kilometers from the Sun.

5. Перед прилагательными и причастиями, превратившимися в имена существительные: 

the wounded, the poor, the rich.

6. Если перед существительным стоит:

а) порядковое числительное: 

The snowdrop is the first spring flower.

б) прилагательное в превосходной степени: 

Moscow is the largest city in Russia.

Отсутствие артикля

1. Если речь идет о веществе в общем смысле: 

I like milk. 

Или одно вещество противопоставлено другому: 

Which do you prefer: tea or coffee? 

Но: если есть ограничительное или уточняющее определение, то употребляется артикль the:

 The coffee is cold. The water in this river is clean.

2. Если перед существительным стоит местоимение, имя собственное в притяжательном падеже или количественное числительное:

 Give me your plan, please. There are some books on the table. I have five English books.

3. Перед названиями дней недели, месяцев и времен года: 

Winter begins in December.

4. Перед существительными breakfast, dinner, lunch, supper: 

I have breakfast at 8 o’clock.

5. Перед существительными, обозначающими названия наук и учебных предметов:

 My favourite subject is history.

Употребление артиклей с именами собственными

1. Как общее правило, имена собственные употребляются без артикля: Moscow, Europe, Mary Smith.

2. Артикль the употребляется:

а) с фамилиями для обозначения всей семьи в целом: 

The Browns spend their holidays in Italy.

б) перед названиями стран, морей, океанов, заливов, если в их названии есть нарицательное существительное с определением: 

the Russian Federation, the United States, the Atlantic Ocean, the Black Sea.

в)  перед названиями следующих стран, местностей и городов: the Ukraine, the Caucasus, the Crimea, the Congo, the Netherlands, the Hague.

г) перед названиями рек: the Volga, the Neva, the Mississippi

д) перед названиями горных хребтов: the Alps, the Urals. Но: названия отдельных горных вершин употребляются без артикля: Elbrus, Everest
е) перед названиями групп островов: the Hawaii, the West Indies
ж) со сторонами света: the North, the South, the East, the West

з) перед названиями судов: the “Titanic”

и) перед названиями некоторых исторических зданий, музеев, театров, библиотек, галерей, гостиниц: the Kremlin, the British Museum, the National Gallery 

к) перед названиями английских газет: the Times
Упражнения:

I. Вставьте артикль a, an, the там, где это необходимо. 

1. This is … pencil.  … pencil is on the table. 2. I am … teacher. My parents are … teachers too. 3. Summer is … most beautiful season of the year. 4. We live in … old house near … station. It is two miles from … center. 5. Peter is in … kitchen. 6. I want to write … letter to my sister. Have you … pen? 7. There is … table and … chairs in the room. 8. I have … family.  … family is big and friendly. 9. … sky is blue and … sun is shining. 10. What is … name o f this village? 11. Lake Baikal is … deepest lake in … world. 12. The office is on … second floor. 13. … two men entered the room. 14.  … clock in … hall is slow. 15. Every English child knows the story of Robin Hood who robbed      … rich and gave money to … poor.

II. Вставьте артикль a, an там, где это необходимо.

1. What … beautiful garden! 2. What … lovely children! 3. It is such … interesting book! 4. Tom is quite … young boy! 5. What … fine weather we have today! 6. What … important people were at the meeting! 7. It is such … original idea! 8. My brothers are such … noisy boys! 9. What … strong coffee! 10. What … great man!

III. Вставьте артикль там, где это необходимо.

1. I usually drink … tea with ... sugar. 2. Pass me … sugar, please. 3. … iron is … metal. 4. Please cut … grass in the garden. 5. Is your shirt made of … silk or … cotton? 6. … tea is very hot. 7. Children drink … milk every day. 8. Don’t drink … milk, it’s too cold. 9. … rice is the main food for the Chinese, Japanese, and Vietnamese.

IV. Вставьте артикли там, где это необходимо, обращая внимание на правила употребления артиклей с именами собственными.

1. … Volga is … longest river in … Russia. 2. … Victory Square is in … center of … Minsk. 3. I live in … Kirov Street. 4. … Black Sea is in … south of our country. 5. … Rome is … capital of … Italy. 6. … Alps are mountains in central Europe. 7. Have you ever been to … National Theatre? 8. You must visit … Museum of Modern Art. 9. I’m going to … United States. 10. …. N. V. Gogol was born in … Ukraine in 1809. 11. … St. Petersburg is situated on … Neva. 12. … Crimea is surrounded by … Black Sea. 13. … Elbrus is … highest peak of … Caucasian Mountains. 14. … Stepanovs had left for … Crimea. 15. … Panama Canal joins … Atlantic Ocean and … Pacific Ocean.
§4. Имя Прилагательное 

Имя прилагательное – это часть речи, которая обозначает признак предмета и отвечает на вопрос «какой?».

Имена прилагательные не изменяются по родам, числам, падежам. Они могут изменяться только по степени сравнения. 

Степени сравнения прилагательных 

В английском языке различают 3 степени сравнения прилагательных: положительную, сравнительную и превосходную.

1) Положительная степень – исходная, не имеет никаких окончаний: big, interesting, dark.

2) Сравнительная степень – используется для сравнения двух предметов или лиц и показывает большую степень признака одного из сравниваемых предметов или лиц. 

Сравнительная степень образуется:

у односложных и двусложных прилагательных, оканчивающихся на –y, -er, -ow, -ble, путем прибавления суффикса –er: 

cold – colder (холодный – холоднее) 

у многосложных прилагательных - при помощи слова more:

 interesting – more interesting (интересный – интереснее)

3) Превосходная степень  – показывает самую большую степень признака предмета. 

Превосходная степень образуется: 

у односложных и двусложных прилагательных, оканчивающихся на –y, -er, -ow, -ble, путем прибавления суффикса –est: 

cold – the coldest (холодный – самый холодный) 

у многосложных прилагательных - при помощи слова the most:

 interesting – the most interesting (интересный – самый интересный).

Правила прибавления суффиксов:

1. Если прилагательное заканчивается на немую –e, то при прибавлении суффиксов она опускается: large – larg-er – the larg-est;

2. Если прилагательное заканчивается на –y с предшествующей согласной, то –y меняется на –i: easy – easier – the easiest; 

Но если перед –y стоит гласная, то –y остается без изменений: gay – gayer – the gayest;
3. Если прилагательное заканчивается на одну согласную с предшествующим кратким гласным звуком, то при образовании степеней сравнения конечная согласная удваивается: 

 big – bigger – the biggest.

Ряд прилагательных образуют степени сравнения не по общему правилу:

good – better – the best                  хороший – лучше – самый лучший
bad – worse – the worst                 плохой – хуже – худший
little – less – the least                     маленький – меньше – самый маленький 

many, much – more – the most     много – больше – самый большой 

old older – the oldest         старший – старше – самый старший (по возрасту)

            elder – the eldest  старший – старше – самый старший (в семье или по положению)

far farther – the farthest   далекий – дальше – самый далекий (о расстоянии)

            further – the furthest   дальний – дальнейший – самый дальний 

Сравнительные конструкции

1. После сравнительной степени часто употребляется союз than (чем): Moscow is larger than Ust-Ilimsk. – Москва больше, чем Усть-Илимск.

2. Со сравнительной степенью также используется конструкция the… the… - чем… тем…: 

The more we study, the better for us. – Чем больше мы учимся, тем лучше для нас.

3. После превосходной степени употребляется предлог of (из): 

He is the best of my friends. – Он – лучший из моих друзей.

4. Для сравнения двух предметов одинакового качества прилагательное в положительной степени ставится между as … as… со значением такой же… как, так же… как: 

He is as young as my brother. – Он такой же молодой, как мой брат. 

В отрицательных предложениях первое as обычно меняется на so: He is not so young as my brother. – Он не такой молодой, как мой брат. 

Упражнения:

I. Образуйте сравнительную и превосходную степени сравнения прилагательных.

Tall, short, cold, big, happy, interesting, beautiful, hard, busy, bad, high, pleasant, heavy, low, old, good, popular, little, many, pretty, polite.

II. Переведите предложения на русский язык.

1. He is a better tennis player than I am. 2. Paul is the best player in this football team. 3. More and more people want to study English. 4. Which of these two medicines is more effective? 5. My grandmother grows the most beautiful flowers in our dacha. 6. January is colder than March. 7. He is not so old as he looks. 8. This street is as wide as the next one. 9. The sooner you understand it, the better. 10. The more we study, the more we know. The more we know, the more we forget. The more we forget, the less we know. The less we know, the less we forget. The less we forget, the more we know. So why study?

III. Поставьте прилагательные в скобках в нужную степень сравнения.

1. Health is (good) than wealth. 2. The Mississippi is (long) river in the world. 3. My cigarettes are (bad) than yours. 4. Our house is as (low) as yours. 5. October is (cold) than May. 6. Henry is (tall) of all. 7.The (little) we speak English, the (bad) for us. 8. English is (easy) than Russian. 9. This plan is (practical) of all. 10. This is (beautiful) house in the city. 11. Mary is as (young) as Ann. 12. He is (good) student in the group. 13. The (long) is the night, the (short) is the day. 14. He is as (strong) as his brother. 15. Football is (popular) than basketball.

 IV. Дайте полные ответы на следующие вопросы.

1. Who is the youngest in your family? 2. Who is the oldest in your family? 3. Are you as young as your friend? 4. Which is the most difficult subject for you? 5. Which is the easiest subject for you? 6. Which is the most interesting subject for you? 7. Which is the longest day of the year? 8. Which is the shortest day of the year? 9. Which is the shortest month of the year? 10. Is it warmer today than it was yesterday? 11. Which season is the coldest? 12. Is Ust-Ilimsk larger than Bratsk? 13. Where is it better to rest: in the South or in the North? 14. Where is it better to live: in the city or in the country? 15. Where is it warmer: in Russia or in Africa?

§5. Имя Числительное 

Имя числительное – это часть речи, которая обозначает количество и порядок предметов при счете.

Имена числительные делятся на количественные (Cardinal Numerals),  отвечающие  на вопрос «сколько?» и порядковые (Ordinal Numerals), отвечающие на вопрос «который?».

Количественные числительные от 13  до 19 образуются прибавлением суффикса –teen к основе. Числительные, обозначающие десятки, прибавляют к основе суффикс –ty. 

Порядковые числительные, кроме первых трех, образуются прибавлением суффикса –th к соответствующим количественным числительным. Они употребляются с определенным артиклем.

1 – one – the first

2 – two – the second

3 – three – the third

4 – four – the fourth

5 – five – the fifth

6 – six – the sixth

7 – seven – the seventh

8 – eight – the eighth

9 – nine – the ninth

10 – ten – the tenth

11 – eleven – the eleventh

12 – twelve – the twelfth

13 – thirteen – the thirteenth

14 – fourteen – the fourteenth

15 – fifteen – the fifteenth

16 – sixteen – the sixteenth

17 – seventeen – the seventeenth

18 – eighteen – the eighteenth

19 – nineteen – the nineteenth

20 – twenty – the twentieth

30 – thirty – the thirtieth

40 – forty – the fortieth

50 – fifty – the fiftieth

60 – sixty – the sixtieth

70 – seventy – the seventieth

80 – eighty – the eightieth

90 – ninety – the ninetieth

100 – a (one) hundred – the hundredth

21 – twenty-one – the twenty-first

22 – twenty-two – the twenty-second

23 – twenty-three – the twenty-third

24 – twenty-four – the twenty-fourth

101 – a (one) hundred and one – the one hundred and first

110 – one hundred and ten – the one hundred and tenth

200 – two hundred – the two hundredth

1000 – a (one) thousand – the thousandth

2005 – two thousand and five – the two thousand and fifth

1,000,000 – a (one) million – the millionth

Для обозначения номеров домов, комнат, транспорта, страниц, глав, параграфов, частей книг употребляются не порядковые, а количественные числительные. Существительные в таких случаях употребляются без артикля.

e.g. house 5, flat 10, bus 3, chapter 6, page 59, paragraph 1.

Хронологические даты

Числительное, обозначающее год, разбивается на две части – сначала произносится число сотен, затем – число десятков и единиц: 

1900 – nineteen hundred

1901 – nineteen-oh-one

1995 – nineteen ninety-five

2003 – twenty-oh-three

Даты обозначаются порядковыми числительными и читаются следующим образом:

On May 9, 1945 – 1) on the ninth of May, nineteen forty-five

2) on May the ninth, nineteen forty-five

Дробные числительные

1/2 - a half
1/4 - a quarter

1/3 - a third

2/3 - two-thirds

0.1 – nought point one

2.45 – two point four five

Обозначения времени

Для обозначения времени используются следующие конструкции:

It is eleven sharp. – Ровно одиннадцать.

It’s ten past eleven. – Десять минут двенадцатого.

It’s a quarter past eleven. – Четверть двенадцатого.

It’s half past eleven. – Половина двенадцатого.

It’s ten to twelve. – Без десяти двенадцать.

It’s a quarter to twelve. – Без четверти двенадцать.

Упражнения:

I. Прочитайте и переведите следующие предложения.

1. William Shakespeare was born in 1564 and died in 1616 in Stratford-on-Avon. 2. Shakespeare wrote 37 plays. 3. Jack London was born on the 12th of January 1876 and died in 1916. 4. On April 12, 1961 the whole world learned about Gagarin’s flight into space. 5. The Second World War began on the 22nd of June 1941.

II. Напишите словами следующие числительные.

1)  количественные:

1, 5, 11, 13, 27, 42, 69, 73, 82, 154, 298, 506, 800, 901,  1000, 1009, 1096, 2355, 3768, 12376, 57849, 476089, 354697, 860005, 1456923, 5078347, 45063210. 

2) порядковые:

17, 20, 24, 33, 51, 72, 149, 83, 56, 150, 178, 209, 1000, 392, 278, 907, 1809, 571, 12004, 846, 666.

3) хронологические даты:

1975, 1982, 1990, 1991, 2000, 2001, 2903, 1856, 1709, 1563, 1987, 1803, 1900, 1901, 1894, 2004.

III. Переведите на английский язык.

1 сентября 1984 года; 7 ноября 1990 года; 9 октября 1947 года; 11 марта 1951 года; 5 июля 1945 года; 8 мая 1861 года; 21 января 1824 года; 27 июля 1990 года; 10 февраля 1972 года; 23 апреля 2002 года.

IV. Ответьте на следующие вопросы.

1) When do we celebrate Victory Day, New Year’s Day, Christmas, Women’s Day, May Day, Cosmonautics Day, and Independence Day?

2) When were you born?

3) When were your father, your mother, your sister, your brother, your friend, and your cousin born?

V. Переведите на английский язык.

1. Ровно два. 2. 10 минут пятого. 3. 14 минут седьмого. 4. Четверть второго. 5. Половина шестого. 6. Без 12 минут восемь. 7. Без четверти три. 8. Без  десяти десять. 9. Половина одиннадцатого. 10. Ровно двенадцать.

§6. Местоимение

Местоимение – это часть речи, которая употребляется вместо имени существительного и других частей речи, которые определяют существительное.

По своему значению местоимения делятся на несколько групп:

Личные местоимения

Личные местоимения употребляются в двух падежах: именительном (кто? что?) и объектном (кого? кому?).

	именит. падеж (кто? что?)
	объектный падеж (кому? кого?)

	I – я
	me – мне, меня

	he - он
	him – ему, его

	she - она
	her – ей, ее

	it – он, она, оно
	it – ему, ей, его, ее

	we - мы
	us – нам, нас

	you – вы, ты
	you – вам, тебе, вас, тебя

	they - они
	them – им, их


Местоимение it заменяет существительные, заменяющие неодушевленные предметы, названия птиц и животных. Кроме того, оно может употребляться как указательное местоимение «это» или быть непереводимым подлежащим в безличных предложениях: It is a map. – Это карта. It is cold. – Холодно.

Притяжательные местоимения

Притяжательные местоимения указывают на принадлежность предмета лицу (чей?). Каждому личному местоимению соответствует притяжательное местоимение, которое употребляется в двух формах: совмещенной (притяжательные I) и абсолютной (притяжательные II). 

	Личное местоимение
	Притяжательные I
	перевод
	Притяжательные II

	I

he

she

it

we

you

they
	my

his

her

its

our

your

their
	мой

его

ее

его, ее

наш

ваш, твой

их
	mine

his

hers

its

ours

yours

theirs


Притяжательные местоимения первого типа (I) употребляются перед существительным и не могут стоять в конце предложения:

This is my book. – Это моя книга. 

Притяжательные местоимения второго типа (II) употребляются без существительного:

This book is mine. – Эта книга – моя.

Возвратные местоимения

У всех личных местоимений есть соответствующие возвратные местоимения, соответствующие в русском языке частице –сь (-ся) в возвратных глаголах.

I – myself
he – himself
she – herself
it – itself
we – ourselves
you – yourself, yourselves
they – themselves
She hurt herself. – Она ушиблась.

Возвратные местоимения употребляются как усилительные:

I can do it myself. – Я могу сделать это сам.

Указательные местоимения

this – этот

that – тот
these – эти
those – те
such – такой
same – тот же самый

Give me that document. – Дайте мне тот документ.

This city is beautiful. – Этот город – красивый.

This is the same book. – Это та же самая книга.

It is such an interesting story. – Это такая интересная история.

Неопределенные местоимения

many – много   

few – мало       употребляются с исчисляемыми существительными

a few – немного
much – много       употребляются с неисчисляемыми существительными    

little – мало          

a little – немного
all – все
both – оба
each – каждый (если имеется в виду ограниченное количество предметов)

every – каждый (неограниченное количество предметов)

no – никакой, нет
another – другой (с неопределенным артиклем)

other – другой (с определенным артиклем)

either – один из двух

either …or – или … или
neither – ни тот, ни другой

neither …nor – ни … ни
Значение местоимений some, any и их перевод зависят от того, в каком предложении они употребляются – утвердительном, вопросительном или отрицательном.

Some:

«некоторые, несколько, немного» - в утвердительных предложениях: Some children don’t like washing. – Некоторые дети не любят умываться.

Any употребляется, как правило, в вопросительных и отрицательных предложениях:

а) в вопросительном предложении оно имеет значение «какой-либо, какой-нибудь»: Is there any news from him? – От него есть какие-нибудь новости?

б)  в отрицательных предложениях оно имеет значение «никакой»: He did not ask any questions. – Он не задал никаких вопросов. 

в) any может употребляться в утвердительном предложении со значением «любой»: Please, take any book you like. – Пожалуйста, возьми любую книгу, которая тебе нравится. 

Неопределенные местоимения some, any, no, every образуют ряд производных:

	местоимение
	+thing
	+body, one
	+where

	some
	something
что-то, что-нибудь
	somebody, someone
кто-то, кто-нибудь
	somewhere
где-то, куда-то, где-нибудь, куда-нибудь

	any
	anything
что-то, что-нибудь
	anybody, anyone
кто-то, кто-нибудь
	anywhere
где-то, куда-то, где-нибудь, куда-нибудь

	no
	nothing

ничего
	nobody, no one

никто
	nowhere

нигде

	every
	everything

всё
	everybody, everyone

все
	everywhere
везде, повсюду


Упражнения:

I. Закончите предложения по образцу, употребляя личные местоимения в общем и объектном падеже. 

 Example: I want to see her but she doesn’t want to see me. 

1. I want to see him but ___ doesn’t want to see ___. 

2. They want to see me but ___ don’t want to see ___.

3. We want to see them but ___ don’t want to see ___.

4. She wants to see him but ___ doesn’t want to see ___.

5. They want to see her but ___ doesn’t want to see ___.

6. I want to see them but ___ don’t want to see ___.

7. He wants to see us but ___ don’t want to see ___.

8. You want to see her but ___ doesn’t want to see ___.

II. Вставьте притяжательные местоимения. 

1. I like … job. 2. Do you like … job? 3. Sally is married. … husband works in a bank. 4. I know Mr. Watson but I don’t know … wife. 5. Put on … coat when you go out. It’s very cold. 6. Mr. and Mrs. Baker live in London but … son lives in Australia. 7. I often see that man but I don’t know … name. 8. The company has offices in many places but … head office is in New York. 9. … favourite sport is tennis. I play a lot in summer. 10. We are staying at a very nice hotel. … room is very comfortable. 

III. Закончите предложения оп образцу, употребляя личные и притяжательные местоимения. 

Образец: I gave him my address and he gave me his. 

1. I gave her ___ address and ___ gave ___ ___. 

2. He gave me ___ address and ___ gave ___ ___. 

3. We gave her ___ address and ___ gave ___ ___. 

4. I gave them ___ address and ___ gave ___ ___. 

5. She gave us ___ address and ___ gave ___ ___. 

6. You gave him ___ address and ___ gave ___ ___. 

7. We gave them ___ address and ___ gave ___ ___. 

8. They gave you ___ address and ___ gave ___ ___. 

IV. Закончите предложения, употребляя возвратные местоимения. 

1. I cut … with a knife. 2. Be careful! That plate is very hot. Don’t burn … . 3. He fell off the ladder but he didn’t hurt … . 4. The police say that the woman shot … with a gun. 5. When people are alone, they often talk to … . 6. I’d like to know more about you. Tell me about … . 7. Don’t pay for me. I want to pay for … 

V. Вместо существительных и местоимений в скобках используйте нужную форму личных местоимений.

1. At Christmas … (friends) often give … (I) presents. 2. … (Mike) likes … (he) friends. 3. … (the bird) is singing lovely. 4. … (my sister and I) do not like to walk … (we) dog. 5. Who is speaking? – It is … (I), Ann. 6. … (your brother and you) spend too much time playing computer games. 7. Mrs. Smith went home because … was tired.

VI. Заполните пропуски необходимыми по смыслу местоимениями.

1. We invited Liz to stay with … in … house. 2. Do you know that man? – Yes, I know … . 3. The bag is heavy. What is there in … ? 4. Look at them! … are playing like kids. 5. She is mad about … car. She spends hours washing … . 6. What’s … telephone number? May I phone you? 7. We know … very well. They are … friends. 8. Give me … photo and I’ll give you … .

VII. Измените предложения по образцу: 

This is a thick notebook. – These are thick notebooks.

1. This is a large factory. 2. That is a good textbook. 3. This is a grey hat. 4. This is a good car. 5. That is a strong dog.

VIII. Употребите местоимения some или any.

1. Have you got … classes tomorrow morning? 2. I have not asked her … questions yet. 3. There are … books on the shelf. 4. Give me … time to think about it. 5. Did she send … message to her mother yesterday? 6. My grandmother does not want … help from my friends. 7. Jane has not … brothers. 8. Has she … English magazines at home? – Yes, she has. 9. Show him … pictures, please. 10. She hasn’t got … coffee in her cup.

IX. Заполните пропуски местоимениями (наречиями), производными от some, any, no, every.

1. Please, give me … interesting to read. 2. There is … important in this letter. 3. Did you hear … about this film? 4. … is here. We can open the meeting. 5. It’s very dark here. I can see … . 6. I’m sure you can get this book … . 7. Victor will go … because he feels unwell. 8. Will … go to the library right after classes? 9. … likes this song. No wonder, you can hear it … . 10. Did you say … ? No, I said … . 11. Ask … to help you in this work. 12. You must do … to improve your English.

X. Вставьте местоимения much, many, little, a little, few, a few.

1. How … money have you got? 2. There were … new words in the text and Peter spent … time learning them. 3. I’d like to say … words about my traveling. 4. She had … books at home, so she had to go to the library. 5. Let’s stay here … longer. I like it here. 6. She gave him … water to wash his hands and face. 7. After the lesson everybody felt … tired. 8. I don’t like … sugar in my tea. I prefer … sugar. 9. Please don’t ask … questions. 10. My mother knows German … and she can help you with the translation of the text.
Unit 3.

§ 1. Система видовременных форм глаголов

Времена группы Simple обозначают обычные, закономерные, периодически повторяющиеся действия, которые регулярно происходят, происходили или будут происходить в настоящем, прошлом и будущем. Точный момент протекания действия не определен. Эта форма употребляется также для выражения состояния, постоянного свойства предмета и констатации факта.

Времена группы Continuous обозначают длительные действия, которые происходят, происходили или будут происходить в точно указанный момент или период в настоящем, прошлом или будущем. В этой форме не употребляются глаголы, выражающие чувства, восприятие и желание: to like - нравиться, to love - любить, to hate - ненавидеть, to wish - желать, to want - хотеть, to see - видеть, to hear - слышать, to feel - чувствовать, to notice - замечать, to recognize - узнавать, to know - знать, to understand - понимать, to remember - помнить, to forget - забывать, to seem - казаться, to be - быть.

Времена группы Perfect употребляются для выражения действий, свершившихся к определенному моменту в настоящем, прошлом и будущем.  

Времена группы Perfect Continuous употребляются для выражения действий, начавшихся в прошлом и продолжающихся до настоящего, прошедшего или будущего момента речи, включая его. 

§2. Настоящие времена

В английском языке употребляется 4 формы настоящего времени.

The Present Simple Tense

Настоящее простое время

Настоящее простое время образуется из инфинитива глагола без частицы to. В 3м лице единственного числа (he, she, it) к глаголу прибавляется окончание –s.

	утвердительная форма
	вопросительная форма
	отрицательная форма

	I           V  (write)

he

she       Vs  (writes)

it

we

you       V  (write)

they
	Do         I       V?

     he

Does      she    V?

     it

      we

Do         you    V?

     they
	I         do not (don’t) V  

he

she      does not (doesn’t) V

it

we

you      do not (don’t) V  

they


Краткие ответы:

Yes, I do. 


No, I don’t.

        he 

Yes, she does. 

         it

        he

No,  she  doesn’t.

         it

         we 

Yes, you    do. 

         they

         we

No,   you    don’t.

         They

Употребление:

1. Для выражения обычных, постоянных, повторяющихся действий в настоящем времени. 

Указатели времени: 

usually – обычно, often – часто, always – всегда, sometimes – иногда, seldom – редко, every day (week, year) – каждый день (неделю, год)

I usually get up at 7 o’clock. – Обычно я встаю в 7 часов.

Nick always helps his friends. – Ник всегда помогает своим друзьям.

2. Для выражения общих положений без указания времени:

Rockets fly faster than airplanes. – Ракеты летают быстрее, чем самолеты.

Упражнения:

I. Объясните употребление настоящего неопределенного времени в следующих предложениях. 

1. Rivers flow towards the sea. 2. A student buys a lot of books at the beginning of each term. 3. Music makes me forget my problems. 4. Mr. Hill lectures Philosophy at the University. 5. Don’t shout. We hear you well. 6. I see that you understand us. 7. The teacher asks us a lot of questions in class every day. 8. There are four seasons in the year. Each season lasts three months and brings changes in the weather. 9. This house belongs to Mr. Rich. 10. If Paul calls us, we shall invite him to dinner. 11. When spring comes they will go to Venice. 12. We are told you are looking for work. 13. I forget where she lives. 14. Every weekend she gets into her car, drives to her country house, and works in her garden. 15. The next bus leaves at exactly two o’clock. 16. The ship sails every Tuesday. 

II. Опишите ваши ежедневные дела, используя наречия always, usually, often, sometimes, seldom, rarely, never.

Образец:   eat breakfast

                 Maria: I usually eat breakfast. 

                 Helen: I never eat breakfast. 

                 Nick: Maria usually eats breakfast. 

                 Helen never eats breakfast.

1. drink coffee in the morning. 2. put sugar in my coffee. 3. drink more than two cups of coffee in the morning. 4. drink tea in the morning. 5. drink orange juice in the morning. 6. drink tomato juice in the morning. 7. drink milk two times a day. 8. have a sandwich for lunch. 9. eat dinner at around six o’clock. 10. get to class on time 11. walk to school 14. take a taxi to school 13. drive to school 14. ride a bike to school 15. study in the library 16. do my homework

III. Употребите глаголы в Present Simple.

1. My dad … in Saudi Arabia. ( work )

2. The Bible … love of money is the root of all evil. (say)

3. She never … up very early. (get)

4. The concert … at 6 this evening. (begin)

5. Can she manage? I …so. ( hope)

6. He … to Moscow once a week. (drive)

7. In the film he… the central character of David Copperfield. (play)

8. She … a very good sister. (be) We …her. (love)

9. The children … a lot of ice-cream. (eat)

10. It seldom … here.(here)

IV. Задайте вопросы вашим однокурсникам.

Образец:    study English / study French

Does Ann study English or French? -  She studies English.

1. like pop music/ jazz (you)

2. get up at 7 /8 o’clock (your mother)

3. go to the pictures often / once a month (your friends)

4. watch TV every evening/ at the weekends (your family)

5. live in the centre of the city / in a new district (your boy-friend)

6. borrow books from the University library / the local library (you)

7. write dictations every week / once a month (pupils)

8. like skiing/skating better (you)

V. Вставьте  do  or  does. 

 1. She  (not) study Japanese. 2. …your father smoke? 3. You (not) like to come home late,… you? 4. …they like their new flat? 5. … you promise to help me? 6. My grandmother (not) work now. …she keep house? 7. …you often go to the library? 8. I (not) know his new address. 9. They (not) visit their friends every weekend. 10. …it often rain in Spain? 11. 

Your watch (not) tell the right time, … it? 12. They (not) often go to the theatre.

VI. Исправьте утверждения.

Образец:  The sun rises in the West.

The sun doesn’t rise in the West. The sun rises in the East.

1. Mice catch cats. 2.The Earth goes round the Moon. 3. The river Volga flows into the Black Sea. 4. Patients look after nurses in hospitals. 5. Water boils at 50 degrees Centigrade. 6. Indians live in Scotland.  7. Carpenters make things from metal. 8. Our city stands on the river Thames. 9. It often rains in Africa. 10. Tiger eat grass. 11. Our group studies Chinese. 12. Our classes begin at 8 a.m. every day.

VII. Задайте вопросы, начиная словами в скобках.

Образец:   I go swimming. (How often?) - How often do you go swimming?

1. She works form Monday till Friday. (Where?)

2. He earns money doing odd jobs. (How much?)

3. I listen to the radio. (When?)

4. People often do stupid things. (Why?)

5. She has dinner rather late in the evening.(Why?)

6. They watch TV. (How often?)

7. He goes to work. (What time?)

8. They plan to go to the South. (When?)

9. He likes poetry very much. (What poets?)

10. She buys lovely things for her daughter. (When?)

VIII. Переведите на английский язык.

1. Мой брат часто слушает эту музыку. 2. Многие люди любят путешествовать. 3.Я вас не понимаю. 4. Он хорошо знает язык и редко делает ошибки. 5. Он часто смотрит на эту фотографию. 6. Они обычно заканчивают работу в 5 часов. 7. Он много обещает, но мало делает. 8. Моя подруга всегда говорит правду. 9. Он никогда не ходит на дискотеки. 10. Я ничего там не вижу. 11. Он редко рассказывает о своей семье. 12. Дети часто поют хором.

The Present Continuous Tense

Настоящее длительное время

	утвердительная форма
	вопросительная форма
	отрицательная форма

	I           am  Ving  

he

she       is     Ving  

it

we

you       are   Ving 

they
	Am         I       Ving ?

              he

Is           she     Ving ?

              it

              we

Are        you    Ving ?

              they
	I         am not   Ving  

he

she      is not    Ving

it

we

you     are not   Ving  

they


Употребление:

Для выражения длительного действия, происходящего в данный момент.

Указатели времени:

now – сейчас, at the moment – в данный момент, at the present moment – в настоящий момент
What are you doing now? – I’m writing a letter. Что ты делаешь сейчас? – Я пишу письмо. 

Упражнения:

I. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Present Continuous.

1. Look! A man (swim) in the lake. 2. Hurry up! The bus (come). 3. Greg’s in the kitchen. He (cook) the dinner. 4. Look at Sue! What a beautiful dress she (wear) today! 5. Sue and Joe (make) a cake for tea. 6. “Be careful! You (sit) on the broken chair. 7. The weather is awful. It (rain). 8. You (walk) too fast.

II. Что происходит в данный момент? Напишите утвердительные и отрицательные предложения.

Образец:  I/have lunch.- I’m not having lunch at the moment.

My classmates /do exercises.- My classmates are doing exercises.

1. It / snow heavily. 2. I /listen to the music. 3 .I /look at my watch. 4. The sun /shine. 5. We /take exercises. 6. My classmates /sit on the sofa. 7. My friends and me /study at the moment. 8. The person next to me /sleep.

III. Задайте общие вопросы. Дайте краткие ответы.

Образец:  It is raining. –   Is it raining? – Yes, it is.

1. The child is crying. 2.  They aren’t working in the garden. 3. We’re driving too fast. 4. They aren’t listening to the teacher. 5. The music is playing rather loud. 6. She isn’t reading a detective story. 7. I’m not doing my homework.

IV. Задайте специальные вопросы к выделенным словам.

1. We are laughing because the film is very funny. 2. Nancy is learning two foreign languages. 3. The secretary is typing some letters. 4. They are meeting at 8 o’clock in the evening. 5. Dolly is wearing a fur coat. 6. They are dancing in the disco. 7. John is watching TV in the living room. 8. I’m translating a very difficult text.
V. Поставьте глагол в Present Simple или Present Continuous Tense.

1. What you (do) here? – I (wait) for my friend. 2. He (speak) French? – Yes, he (speak) French quite fluently. 3. Listen! Someone (knock) at the door. 4. Don’t go into the classroom! The students (write) a dictation there. 5. She (write) letters to her mother every week. 6. The man who (smoke) a cigarette is our English teacher. 7. Let’s go for a walk, it (not rain). 8. You (hear) anything? – I (listen) hard, but I (not hear) anything. 9. My brother (smoke) a great deal. 10. Listen! The telephone (ring). 11. Where is Peter? – He (have) his English lesson. I think that he always (have) it at this hour. 12. Tom usually (play) football but today he (play) tennis. 13. The Professor (speak) five foreign languages. Right now he (speak) Dutch. 14. My friend always (tell) me the truth, but I see that she (tell) a lie now. 15. I usually (drive) to my work. – Be careful! You (drive) too fast. 16. She, as a rule, (wear) smart hats. But today she (wear) a funny-looking one. 17. I (do) a lot of work every day. - Don’t worry! I (know) what I (do). 18. You (eat) fruit every day? What is the name of the fruit you (eat) with such pleasure? 19. You (remember) where he (work)? 20. Where are Ann and her sister? – They (stand) in the passage and (talk).

VI. Переведите на английский  язык,  употребляя Present Simple или Present Continuous.

1. Возьми зонтик. Идет дождь. 2. Поезд прибывает через 5 минут. 3. Не говорите так громко. Я хорошо вас слышу. 4. Они часто говорят о вас. 5. Послушай, она поёт какую-то новую песню. 6. Мне не нравится ваш приятель, он всё время ворчит и жалуется. 7. Кто это стоит у окна? Я не знаю эту женщину. 8. Мы обычно ужинаем в 7 часов. 9. Я не понимаю, что он говорит. 10. Мой друг уезжает в этот город завтра. 11. На уроках мы переводим тексты, а дома учим грамматические правила. 12. На каком языке они говорят сейчас с вашим другом? – Они говорят по-английски, но мой друг знает также и немецкий. 13. Вы часто навещаете своих друзей? – Мы встречаемся каждую субботу. 14. Отец дома? – Да. Он работает в саду. Он часто там работает в это время. 15. Не входите в аудиторию. Студенты пишут там контрольную работу.    

The Present Perfect Tense

Настоящее совершенное время

have/has + V3

V3 правильные глаголы       + ed
     неправильные глаголы – 3 столбик в таблице неправильных глаголов

	утвердительная форма
	вопросительная форма
	отрицательная форма

	I           have  V3  

he

she       has     V3  

it

we

you       have  V3 

they
	Have      I       V3 ?

              he

Has        she     V3 ?

              it

              we

Have      you    V3 ?

              they
	I         have not   V3  

he

she      has not    V3

it

we

you     have not   V3  

they


Употребление:

1. Для выражения действия, законченного к настоящему моменту времени, но связанному с настоящим. Связь с настоящим осуществляется двумя путями:

а) результатом действия, которое совершилось ранее, имеющимся налицо в данный момент:

I can’t get into the room. I have lost my key. – Я не могу попасть в комнату. Я потерял ключ. 

б) временем совершения действия: действие закончилось к данному моменту, но период времени, к которому это действие относится, еще продолжается (today, this week, this month, this year):

Have you seen him today? – Ты видел его сегодня?

2. С наречиями неопределенного времени:

just – только что

already – уже     

стоят между вспомогательным и смысловым глаголами                       

ever – когда-нибудь

never – никогда

yet – уже, еще (в вопросах и отрицаниях)

lately/recently – недавно



стоят в конце предложения

before- прежде

Have you ever been to France? – Ты когда-нибудь был во Франции?

He hasn’t come yet. – Он еще не пришел.

3. С предлогами for – в течение и since – с, с тех пор как:

I haven’t seen him for a year. – Я не видел его в течение года.

We haven’t met since 1999. – Мы не встречались с 1999 года. 

Упражнения:

I. Почитайте и переведите предложения на русский язык. Объясните употребление Present Perfect Tense.

1. What’s the time? – Sorry, I have left my watch at home. 2. I can’t get into the room. I have lost my key. 3. It is absolutely dark in the room. Who has turned off the light? 4. I don’t see my dictionary on the table. Who has taken it? – It’s me. I have put it on the shelf. 5. We haven’t read about it in the newspaper yet.  6. Have you ever seen this film? 7. We haven’t seen him since we finished school. 8. They have had no lectures this week. Their lecturer has been ill since last Monday. 9. Mary has just made coffee. 10. I haven’t seen you for a long time. 

II. Постройте предложения по образцам, используя слова, данные в скобках.

Образец 1. I have seen him today. 
(to meet her – lately, to go to the cinema – this week, to go to the country – this month, to read many English books – this year, to speak with him – today).

Образец 2. I haven’t seen him since 1960.

(to speak with my friend – last month, to go to the theatre – last year, to hear from them – last autumn, to read anything in English – May, to translate from Russian into English – I left school).

Образец 3. Have you ever been to London? – I have never been to London.

(to New York, Paris, Berlin, Washington, Warsaw, Odessa, Rome). 

Образец 4. Who has taken my book?

(to break the glass, to leave a note-book, to turn off the light, to switch on TV, to take my pencil).

Образец 5. What have you brought?

(to lose, to find, to do, to prepare, to send, to translate).

Образец 6. Why haven’t you done it?

( to study this material, to learn these rules, to put the book in its place, to close the door, to open the window, to call me up).

III. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Present Perfect.

1. I (be) to Paris. 2. We (know) her since she arrived to our city. 3. I (forget) your name. 4. He (close) the door? 5. He (do) it since we left him. 6. They (leave) Moscow this month? 7. I (get) a long letter from father this week. 8. She just (come); she will speak to you in a minute .9.They never (behave) like this before. 10. I (not get) the grant this year. 11. He (not answer) my letter yet. 12. You ever (eat) caviar? 13. They (travel) all over the world. 14. How long you (be) here? 15. I  (lose) my gloves. 16. I never (ride) a camel.  

IV. Ответьте на вопросы, употребляя глаголы в Present Perfect.

Образец:   Are the rooms clean? (do) -  Yes, mother has done them.

1. Does she know the song? (learn)

2. Is breakfast ready? (cook)

3. Do you know how tasty the pie is? (eat) 

4. Are the papers ready? (type)

5. Is she at home? (come)

6. Do you know the melody? (hear many times)

7. Can you speak on the subject? (read about it)

8. Is Ann on holiday? (go to Italy)

9. Are you ready with the report? (write it)

10. Can you do this work? (finish it)

V. Ответьте на вопросы, употребляя слова в скобках.

Образец:  When did you see her last? (since autumn) - I haven’t seen her since autumn.

1. When did it rain last? (since September)

2. When did you last eat caviar? (for ages)

3. When did you play chess last? (for a long time)

4. When did he last write to you? (since last summer)

5. When did you last go to Madrid? (never)

6. When did you last ride a horse? (since last month)

7. When did you last visit her? (since last month)

8. When did your boy-friend give you a present? (since my birthday)

9. When did you buy fruits last? (for two days)

VI. Вставьте  since или for . Переведите предложения на русский язык.

Образец: Where is Kate? Oh, she’s been in London since 1993.

1. I’ve known him … a long time. 2. We’ve been on holiday… three weeks. 3. He’s been a student… four years. 4. She hasn’t been to work … July. 5. She has been ill … fortnight. 6. They have been divorced … last year. 6. We have been very busy … Christmas. 8. My grandmother has been a pensioner … five years. 9. He has been away … month.

VII. Вставьте  already, ever, yet, just. 

1. Have you … been to South Africa? 2. Have you … finished writing your essay or did you finish it earlier? – I haven’t finished it … . 3. Shall I pay the waiter? – No, I’ve … paid the bill. 4. Have you … spoken to a famous person? 5. Ann, lay the table. I’ve … cooked dinner. 6. They don’t know what the problem is. They have … arrived. 7. Is it a good film? – Yes, it’s the best I have … seen. 8. The post hasn’t come … . 9. She has … explained the situation to me. 10. He hasn’t invited me to the party … . 11. Nobody has found the lost city of Atlantis … .

VIII. Откройте скобки, употребив глагол в нужной видовременной форме. Переведите предложения на русский язык. 

1. At last I (do) all my homework. Now I (go) for a walk. If you (want), you may join me. 2. You can’t see Boris now. He (have) an English class. 3. When you (see) your friend last? 4. We (not meet) you since we graduated from the Institute. 5. The lecture yet (not begin) and the students (talk) loudly. 6. I (not have) a History class since last week. 7. – What you (do) now? – I (translate) a text. 8. I never (be) to Kiev. 9. The delegation just (arrive) and we yet (not speak) with its members. 10. Our school children often (go) to the Musical Theatre of late. 11. I (know) Peter since my childhood. 12. We (read) nine books this year. 

The Present Perfect Continuous Tense

Настоящее совершенно-длительное время

	утвердительная форма
	вопросительная форма
	отрицательная форма

	I           have  been Ving  

he

she       has been Ving 

it

we

you     have been Ving 

they
	Have        I       been Ving ?

             he

Has         she   been Ving ?

             it

            we

Have      you  been Ving ?

            they
	I         have not been  Ving  

he

she      has not  been  Ving

it

we

you     have not been  Ving 

they


Употребление: 

1. Для выражения длительного действия, которое началось в прошлом и еще совершается в настоящее время. При этом всегда указан период времени, в течение которого совершается действие.  

Указатели времени:

for an hour – в течение часа

for a month – в течение месяца

for a long time – в течение долгого времени, давно, долго

since yesterday – со вчерашнего дня

how long? – как долго?

since when? –с каких пор?

How long have you been living in Moscow? -  I have been living there for 2 years. – Сколько времени ты живешь в Москве? – Я живу там 2 года. 

2. Для выражения длительного действия, которое началось в прошлом и закончилось непосредственно перед моментом речи.

I feel tired because I have been working in the garden for 7 hours. – Я чувствую себя уставшим, потому что я работал в саду в течение 7 часов.

Упражнения:

I. Поставьте глаголы в скобках в Present Continuous Tense. Переведите предложения на русский язык.

1. She (work) at the Institute for 5 years. 2. I (wait) for my brother for a long time. 3. What you (do) here since early morning? 4. I (prepare) for my examination since 9 o’clock. 5. He (live) in Moscow for 10 years. 6. She (teach) English since 1980. 7. How long he (live) in Irkutsk? 8. Since when you (work) at this factory? 

II. Задайте вопросы к предложениям.

1. The tourists have been traveling since last Sunday. (Since when)

2. She has been driving a car for 10 years. (How long)

3. He has been going in for bodybuilding for 3 months. (Who)

4. She has been speaking on the phone since 10 o’clock. (What)

5. I have been waiting for a bus for half an hour. (How long)

III. Раскройте скобки, употребив формы Present Perfect и Present Perfect Continuous. 
1. We (walk) ten kilometres. 2. We (walk) for three hours. 3. I’m on a diet, I (eat) nothing but apples for the whole week. 4. He (sleep) since ten o’clock. 5. The students (work) very well this term. 6. I (work) with him for ten years and he never (say) “Good morning” to me. 7. You (hear) the news? Tom and Ann are engaged! 8. How many baskets of apples you (pick)? It seems to me you (pick) them for three hours already. 9. You (see) my bag anywhere? I (look) for it for half an hour.

IV. Поставьте глагол в Present Simple, Present Continuous, Present Perfect или Present Perfect Continuous.
1. Helen (learn) English at the Institute. She (learn) English since last autumn. 2. They are busy now. They (discuss) an important question. They (discuss) it since 5 o’clock. 3. Where is Petrov? –He (work) at the library. - He (work) long? – Yes, he (work) since morning. 4. You (have) breakfast yet? 5. My brother (be) in hospital. He (be) there for ten days. 6. Ivanov (teach) French. He is a very experienced teacher. He (teach) French for fifteen years. 7. I (know) Peter well. – Since when you (know) him? – I (know) him since 1940. 8. Whom you (wait) for? – I (wait) for Peter. – You (wait) for him long? – Yes, I (wait) about half an hour. 9. What you (translate) now? – I (translate) an economic article. – How long you (translate) it? – I (translate) it for an hour. 10. She just (boil) an egg. 11. Where is my magazine? – It (lie) on your writing-table. 12. Your book (lie) here for a few days. Take it. 13. We (know) each other very well. 14. We (know) each other since I came to Moscow. 15. Ivanov is a director of our factory. He (be) director of our factory since 1990. 16. My brother (live) in Kiev. – How long he (live) there? – He (live) there since 1945. 17. Here are your shoes. I (clean) them. 18. You are a little late. The play just (begin). 19. The newspaper (come) yet? – Yes, Ann (read) it. 20. We shall have to walk because we (miss) our bus. 21.  I (translate) 5 or 6 articles a week. 22. He already (paint) the door. 23. Tom’s father (be) a policeman for 20 years. 24. How long she (learn) Italian? 25. You (learn) English for a long time? 26. He (play) tennis since he was 11. 27. It (rain) all the day. 28. That is a very old car. I (have) it for ages. 29. She (travel) around Europe for 3 months. 30. Bob and Ann (be married). – How long they (be married)?

§3. Прошедшие  времена

В английском языке употребляется 4 формы прошедшего времени.

The Past Simple Tense

Прошедшее простое время

В зависимости от способа образования прошедшего простого времени и причастия II все английские глаголы делятся на правильные и неправильные.  

Правильные глаголы образуют Past Simple и причастие II с помощью суффикса -ed, который прибавляется к основе глагола и произносится как:

[d] – после гласных и звонких согласных: to play – played, to open – opened

[t] – после глухих согласных: to work – worked

[id] – после букв t и d: to want – wanted, to end – ended

При прибавлении суффикса –ed соблюдаются следующие правила:

1) если глагол оканчивается на –y с предшествующей согласной, то –y меняется на –i: to study – studied
2) глаголы, оканчивающиеся на немую –e, теряют ее: to live – lived
3) если односложный глагол оканчивается на одну согласную с предшествующим кратким гласным звуком, то конечная согласная удваивается: to stop – stopped
4) многосложные глаголы удваивают конечную согласную, если ударение падает на последний слог: to permit – permitted (кроме глаголов to order, to develop) 

5) согласные –l, -m, -p удваиваются на конце: to travel – traveled
Неправильные глаголы образуют формы различными способами, которые нужно смотреть в таблице неправильных глаголов: Past Simple - 2 столбик, причастие II – 3 столбик.

	утвердительная форма
	вопросительная форма
	отрицательная форма

	I           

he

she       Ved  (worked)

it          V2      (went)

we

you       

they
	              I       

              he

Did       she    V?  (work, go)

              it

             we

            you    

            they
	I         

he

she      did not (didn’t) V

it

we

you      

they


Употребление:

1. Для выражения действия, имевшего место в прошлом. 

Указатели времени: 

yesterday – вчера

last week (month, year) – на прошлой неделе (месяце, году)

5 days ago – 5 дней назад

in 2000 – в 2000 году

I entered the University last year. – В прошлом году я поступил в университет.

2. Для выражения ряда последовательных действий, происходивших одно за другим:

Mr. White left the hotel, took a taxi and went to the airport. – Мистер Уайт вышел из отеля, взял такси и поехал в аэропорт.

Упражнения:

I. Прочитайте предложения и напишите их в  Past Simple Tense.

Сделайте необходимые изменения.

1. I often see Julia at the University. Yesterday … .

2. We always meet on Sundays. Last month …

3. Dan usually walks on Sundays. Yesterday … .

4. He usually has a sandwich  for lunch. Yesterday … .

5. They usually watch TV in the evening. Yesterday evening … .

6. I usually sleep very well. Last night … .

7. He does morning exercises every day. Yesterday …

8. She often loses things. Two days ago … .

9. She often brings flowers from the country. Last Sunday … … .

10. This woman sells vegetables every day. On Saturday … .

II. Выберите глаголы из рамочки и поставьте их в Past Simple в предложения. 


1. We needed some money, so we … our car. 2. They … last Saturday as usual. 3. I … a pet-dog when I was a boy. 4. Who … the window open last night? 5. Mary … down the stairs this morning and … her leg. 6. She … a dress which … a lot of money. 7. I … this box on the beach yesterday. 8. My brother … me this beautiful bag. 9. I … him on the way to the University. 10. A. Christie … many novels and stories. 11. Mother … me to read and write.  12. I … all your books on the shelf over there. 

III. Напишите подходящий вопрос для каждого ответа. 

A. …  B. I went to the Black Sea coast in summer.

A. …  B. I spent there a fortnight. 

A. …  B. I got up early, went to the sea, bathed and lay in the sun.

A. …  B. The weather was sunny and hot.

A. …  B. My friend and I rented a nice room in a private house. 

A. …  B. No, it was not far from the sea. 

A. …  B. We cooked our meals at home. 

A. …  B. Vegetables and fruits were not very expensive. 

A. …  B. I greatly enjoyed my holiday. 

IV. Дайте ответы на вопросы по образцу. 

Образец:    Did you have a date yesterday?

                   No, I didn’t. I was very busy. 

1. Did you watch TV yesterday? 2. Did you travel much last summer? 3. Did your parents go to the country on Sunday? 4. Did you go to the swimming-pool on Wednesday? 5. Did you do the shopping at the weekend? 6. Did your friend work during his holidays? 7. Did you keep any pets in your childhood? 8. Did you often get bad marks at school? 9. Did you often quarrel with your friends when you were a kid?       

V.  Задайте вопросы.

Образец:    Where/go? - Where did you go in summer?

1. How long / stay there? 2. Stay in a hotel / rent a room? 3. Go alone / with friends? 4. Food / be good? 5. The weather / be fine? 6. What / do in the evening? 7. Meet / any interesting people? 8. How / travel there? 9. What places of interest / see? 10. How / spend time? 11. What / like best of all? 12. When / come back? 13.  How / travel back?

VI. Переведите на английский язык.

1. Они купили новый дом в прошлом году. 2. Когда вы видели его в последний раз? 3. Когда он сказал вам об этом? 4. На прошлой неделе мы никуда не выходили из дома по вечерам. 5. Это случилось неделю назад. 6. Они поженились, когда Джону было 24, а Лизе – 18. 7. Его родители умерли, когда он был еще совсем ребенок. 8. Кто встречал вас на вокзале? 9. Когда они уехали из России? 10. Я нашла это в шкафу. 11. Он начал писать стихи, когда ему было 14 лет. 12. Прошлая зима была теплой. 13. Где вы познакомились с этой девушкой? 14. Почему вы не пришли к нам в воскресенье? 15. Мы решили послать эту телеграмму вчера. 16. Она посмотрела на доску и списала новые слова. 17. С кем вы обсуждали этот вопрос раньше? 18. Сколько раз в неделю вы бывали в институте в прошлом году?
The Past Continuous Tense

Прошедшее длительное время

	утвердительная форма
	вопросительная форма
	отрицательная форма

	I               

he

she       was     Ving  

it

we

you       were   Ving 

they
	               I        

              he

Was      she     Ving ?

              it

             we

Were     you    Ving ?

             they
	I         

he

she      was not    Ving

it

we

you     were not   Ving  

they


Употребление:

1. Для выражения длительного действия, происходившего в какой-то определенный момент в прошлом. Этот момент может быть обозначен:

а) точным указанием момента времени:

at 5 o’clock yesterday – вчера в 5 часов
at that time – в это время
from 5 till 7 – с 5 до 7

I was working from 5 till 7 yesterday. – Я работал вчера с 5 до 7. 

б) другим однократным действием, выраженным глаголом в Past Simple:

When I went out, it was raining. – Когда я вышел, шел дождь. 

2. Для эмоционального подчеркивания длительности действия:

all the day long – весь день
the whole morning yesterday – все вчерашнее утро
It was raining the whole morning yesterday. – Дождь шел все вчерашнее утро. 

Упражнения:

I. Раскройте скобки, употребляя Past Continuous Tense.

Образец:  I was watching television when the phone rang. (watch)

1. W e (listen) to the radio when it suddenly stopped working. 2. When I saw them. They (play) football. 3. When I got out of the house it (rain). 4.  He cut himself when he (shave). 5. You broke your tooth when you (eat) walnuts. 6. Why you (walk) along Oxford street late yesterday evening? 7. I (read) in bed when I heard a scream. 8. You (wait) for your friend when I saw you. 9. It (get) colder when the sun set. 10. What you (do) at this time yesterday?

II. Поставьте глаголы в отрицательной форме Past Continuous Tense.

Образец: I was walking home when it began to rain. 

                I wasn’t walking home when it began to rain. 

1. This time last year you were having a holiday in Spain. 2. Sally took a photograph of me while I was looking at her. 3. It was raining hard when I woke up in the morning. 4. He was driving at 100 kilometers an hour when an accident happened. 5. We were enjoying ourselves at the party last night. 6. My parents were gardening all weekend.

III. Употребите глаголы в Past Continuous. 

Образец: I wasn’t listening (not/listen) so I missed what he said. 

1. Just as I ___ (get) to an interesting part of the story, the telephone rang. 2. When she was younger, she ___ (always play) jokes on other people. 3. Yesterday afternoon we ___ (not/tidy up) our flat. 4. My parents ___ (argue) about something when I walked into the room. 5. Pete ___ (not/listen) to the lecturer; he ___ (talk) to his friends. 6. A strong wind ___ (blow) right in my face. 

IV. Задайте специальные вопросы к выделенным словам. 

Образец: We were taking the exam in the lecture hall. - Where were you taking the exam?

1. I was looking for some photos when you rang. 2. They were doing 70 miles an hour because they didn’t want to be late for the train. 3. My grandfather was serving in the army when the war broke out. 4. They were selling tickets at six pounds each. 5. Joan’s husband was fixing the car when he saw a car crash. 6. They were driving home from the theatre when the police stopped them.

V. Поставьте глаголы в скобках в Past Continuous Tense. 

1. He (walk) home when the rain began. 2. My wife and I (talk) about you the other day. 3. When I first met him he (study) painting. 4. The car hit a tree while it (travel) at 60 miles an hour. 5. Where he (live) when you saw him last? 6. Tom (sit) in a corner with a book. 7. I went into the garden to see what the boys (do). 8. The traffic made so much noise that I couldn’t hear what he (say). 9. While he (learn) to drive he had twenty-five accidents. 10. From the sounds it was clear that Mary (practice) the piano. 11. John (work) all the day yesterday. 12. He watched the children for a moment. 13. When I first met him he (work) in a restaurant. 14. One winter evening the old man and his wife (sit) by the tree. 15. John got off the train while it (go). 16. It (rain) when we went out. 17. I (play) the piano when he came into the room. 18. I came into the room when Mary (play) the piano. 19. While we (fish) someone came to the house and left this note. 20. She (live) in England when the war began. 
VI. Поставьте глагол в Past Simple или Past Continuous Tense.

1. Mrs. Green (go) to the office last Saturday. 2. Mr. Wimble (buy) a new flat last month. 3. Margaret (write) letters all yesterday morning. 4. Roger and David (walk) to the station yesterday? 5. I (watch) TV when it began to rain. 6. Michael (look) for the dog all last week but he could not find it. 7. Mr. West (arrive) home at 6 o’clock every day last week. 8. My friend (talk) to Professor Ivanov when I saw him. 9. When the students heard the bell, they (get) up and (leave). 10. The girl fell and hurt herself while she (ride) her bicycle. 11. He (write) a letter when I (see) him. 12. Harry (do) his work while his brothers (play) games. 13. The man (fall) down as he (run) for the bus. 14. We (sing) a song when George (come) into the room. 15. While the teacher (give) a lesson, a small dog (walk) into the room. 16. When the telephone bell (ring), I (work) in the garden. 17. My hat (flow) off when I (cross) the bridge. 18. The rain (begin) to fall while we (watch) the game. 19. Just as I (get) interested in my work, I (have) to go home. 20.  Mary (wear) her new dress when I met her yesterday.

The Past Perfect Tense

Прошедшее совершенное время

	утвердительная форма
	вопросительная форма
	отрицательная форма

	I 

he
she       

it             had     V3  

we

you       

they
	         I       

        he

        she     

Had          it           V3 ?

         we

          you    

          they
	I          

he

she      
it              had not    V3
we

you        

they


Употребление:

1. Для выражения действия, которое совершилось к определенному моменту в прошлом:

by that time – к этому времени

by last year – к прошлому году

by 3 o’clock yesterday – вчера к 3м часам
I have finished my homework by 3 o’clock yesterday. – Я закончил домашнюю работу вчера к 3м часам.

2. Для выражения действия, которое совершилось ранее другого действия в прошлом. Глагол, обозначающий другое, более позднее действие, употребляется в Past Simple.

When I arrived at the party, Tom had already gone home. – Когда я приехал на вечеринку, Том уже ушел домой. 

Упражнения:

I. Переведите на русский язык.

1. We had already built this plant by the end of 1997. 2. I had already written my exercise by half past six. 3. At nine o’clock he had already left. 4. I had written my exercise before he came. 5. They had returned home long before I rang them up. 

II. Поставьте глагол в скобках в форму Past Perfect. Переведите предложения на русский язык.

1. I (live) in Kiev before I moved to Minsk. 2. She (learn) to speak English by the end of the year. 3. After the sun (set) we went home. 4. By that time mother (prepare) dinner. 5. He already (park) the car when I arrived. 6. They (finish) their experiment by 5 o’clock. 

III. Поставьте глаголы в скобках в Past Simple или Past Perfect. 

1. The new bus-driver (have) an accident after he (drive) a few years. 2. When I (get) to the cinema, the film (start). 3. The students (enter) the classroom five minutes after the bell (ring). 4. After she (lock) and (bolt) all the boors, she (go) to bed. 5. The students (do) the exercise very well after the teacher (show) them how to do it. 6. The little boy (tell) a lie five minutes after he (promise) to tell the truth. 7. When the plane (land), the sun (set). 8. She (feel) sick after she (eat) a whole box of chocolates. 9. After the doctor (examine) the child he (have) a talk with the mother. 10. When I (call) on my friend he (go) out. 11. Mary (finish) her homework when her father (come) home from his office. 12. I (throw) away the newspaper after I (read) it. 13. After she (spend) all her money she (ask) her father to help her. 14. The teacher (give) back the exercise-books after he (correct) them. 15. The sun (rise) when the farmer (start) working. 

IV. Переведите на английский язык, употребляя Past Simple или Past Perfect. 

1. Мистер Браун ушел за 2 часа до того, как они прибыли. 2. Тот человек убежал перед тем, как начался обыск. 3. Она болела 6 лет перед тем, как умерла. 4. Он окончил работу гораздо раньше, чем мы ожидали, так как он рассчитывал получить дополнительные деньги. 5. Он написал письмо к 6 часам. 6. Они ушли из клуба до того, как мы пришли. 7. К тому времени дети ушли в школу. 8. Они ушли очень далеко, когда заметили тучи. 9. Она сделала половину работы к концу месяца. 10. Я сделал домашнюю работу до того, как ты позвонил. 11. Он повторил слова к тексту к 7 часам. 12. Джейн выучила французский до того, как приехала в Париж. 

The Past Perfect Continuous Tense

Прошедшее совершенно-длительное время

	утвердительная форма
	вопросительная форма
	отрицательная форма

	I           

he

she       

it          had been Ving

we

you     

they
	                 I       

             he

                she   

 Had      it       been Ving ?

             we

                you  

            they
	I          

he

she      

it           had not  been  Ving

we

you      

they


Употребление: 

1. Для выражения длительного прошедшего действия, начавшегося ранее другого прошедшего действия, выраженного глаголом в Past Simple, и еще происходящего в момент его совершения. При этом всегда указан период времени, в течение которого совершалось действие.  

I had been working for 2 hours when my brother came. – Я работал в течение 2 часов, когда пришел мой брат. 

2. Для выражения длительного прошедшего действия, которое закончилось непосредственно перед моментом наступления другого прошедшего действия.

He felt very tired when he came home as he had been playing football for 3 hours. – Он чувствовал себя очень уставшим, когда пришел домой, так как играл в футбол в течение 3 часов.

Упражнения: 

I. Поставьте глагол в скобках в форму Past Perfect Continuous. Переведите предложения на русский язык. 

1. We were tired as we (walk) for more than an hour. 2. Mrs. Jackson was one of the best teachers at school. She (teach) for twenty years. 3. Dora was writing a letter to her boyfriend. She (write) it since she got home from class. 4. My eyes were getting tired. I (read) for two hours. I decided to have a break. 5. They (drive) all night when finally they saw the lights of the city. 6. Mr. Robbins liked his job. He (work) at the company for fifteen years. 

II. Раскройте скобки, употребив одно из времен (Past Perfect или Past Perfect Continuous).

1. He already (park) the car when I arrived. 2. He (drive) all day, so he was very tired when he arrived. 3. I (finish) cleaning the car before one o’clock. 4. What you (do) in the garden before I came? 5. I (live) in Germany before I came to Russia. 6. They already (write) a letter when the light went down. 7. Last year the plant (fulfil) the plan by the end of November. 8. The train (not, arrive) yet by that time. 9. The child (sleep) for an hour before we came.  

III. Поставьте глагол в Past Simple, Past Continuous, Past Perfect или Past Perfect Continuous Tense.

1. He not (see) me as he (read) when I (to come) into the room. 2. When he was in Gorky he (visit) the places where he (play) as a boy. 3. The telegram (arrive) five minutes after you (leave) the office. 4. It (rain) hard last night when I (leave) home. 5. The train could not stop because it (travel) too fast at the time. 6. When I (call) for my friend, his sister (tell) me that he (leave) half an hour before. 7. I (shout) to him to stop, but he (run) too fast and not (hear). 8. Large crowds (wait) at the station when the delegation (arrive). 9. When I (hear) the news, I (hurry) to see him. 10. We (walk) to the station when it began to rain. 11. He (sit) in the garden when the storm (break) out. 12. He (thank) me for what I (do) for him. 13. When I (wake) up this morning, the sun (shine) high in the sky. 14. Before he (enter) the Institute, he (work) at a plant. 15. The manager (leave) the office before I (arrive). 16. When I (go) to the room the next day, I (find) the books exactly where I (leave) them. 17. We (walk) for about two hours when at last we (see) the lake. 18. I (live) in Leningrad when the war (break) out. 19. His telegram (arrive) when I (leave) home. 20. Last year I often (go) to the theatre. 21. He (finish) his work by 6 o’clock. 22. Yesterday I (buy) a watch as I (lose) my old one. 23. When I (come) the typist (type) the letters which I (give) her the day before. 24. When my son (be) ill, the doctor (visit) him every day. 25. The typist (not type) all the letters when I came. 26. I (read) very much last summer. 27. She (cut) her finger while she (cut) the bread. 28. I spent my holiday in a little village on the Volga. A friend of mine (advise) me to go there. 29. In the summer I (call) on them every evening. 30. It still (rain) when we (come) out of home. 31. I (have) dinner when he (ring) me up. 32. I (read) the whole evening yesterday. 33. My sister still (sleep) when I (get up) because she (return) home rather late. 34. I (wait) for him about half an hour. 35. They (study) English for two years when they (start) to learn Chinese. 36. I (return) home rather late. It (be) getting dark and it (rain). I (walk) quickly as I (not take) my umbrella and (be) afraid of getting wet. Cars (pass) me. Suddenly one of them (stop) near me and somebody (call) me. I (recognize) the voice of my friend, Doctor A. He (ask) me to get into the car and five minutes later I (be) at home. I (come) home, (have) supper and (begin) to read the newspaper. Suddenly I (remember) that I (promise) my friend to return him his English textbook. He (give) it to me for two days and (ask) me to return it in time. I (stand) up, (take) the textbook and (go) to my friend’s.

§ 4. Будущие времена
The Future Simple Tense

Будущее простое время

	утвердительная форма
	вопросительная форма
	отрицательная форма

	I           

we           shall V

he

she      

it            will V

you       

they
	             I       

Shall     we         V?

             he    

             she

Will      it            V?  

            you    

            they
	I         

we        shall not V 

he

she        

it            will not V

you      

they


Употребление:

1. Для выражения действия или ряда действий, которые произойдут в будущем времени. 

Указатели времени: 

tomorrow – завтра

next week (month, year) – на следующей неделе (месяце, году)

in 5 days– через 5 дней 

in 2010 – в 2010 году

I shall graduate from the University next year. – Я окончу университет в следующем году.

2. Future Simple не употребляется в придаточных предложениях времени (when - когда) и условия ( if - если). В этих предложениях вместо Future Simple употребляется Present Simple, хотя на русский язык переводится глаголом в будущем времени.
I shall ask him about it when he comes. – Я спрошу его об этом, когда он придет. 

If the weather is fine, we shall go to the country. – Если погода будет хорошая, мы поедем за город. 

Упражнения:

I. Переведите предложения на русский язык. Сделайте их вопросительными и отрицательными.

1. My brother will graduate from the University next year. 2. I shall go to the cinema tomorrow. 3. They will play tennis on Saturday. 4. We shall translate this text the day after tomorrow. 5. He will write a letter to his sister tomorrow. 6. My parents will go to the South next year. 7. I shall finish this work in a week. 8. He will come back on Friday. 9. We shall meet our friends tomorrow.

II. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Future Simple. 

1. I (think) about this information tomorrow. 2. According to the forecast it (be) raining tomorrow. 3. We (come) to see you on Monday. 4. I  (prepare) to my examinations next week. 5. You (show) me your new picture? 6. I think he (not come) tomorrow. 7. I don’t think she (answer) all the questions. 8. We (work) in our garden tomorrow. 9. How you (pack) your things? 10. Her mother (buy) her a silver chain for her birthday.  

III. Переведите на английский язык, употребляя Future Simple.

1. Я уверен, что вы решите эту проблему. 2. Она не зайдет к нам в воскресенье. 3. Я не буду читать эту поэму завтра. 4. Я полечу в Великобританию самолетом. 5. Наши друзья приедут вечером. 6. Этот врач будет лечить вашего отца. 7. Не волнуйся!  Я достану тебе билеты. 8. Они будут ждать нас в холле. 9. Они поедут в Крым в августе.

The Future Continuous Tense

Будущее длительное время

	утвердительная форма
	вопросительная форма
	отрицательная форма

	I               

we  shall be Ving

he

she             

it    will be Ving

you          

they
	             I        

Shall     we      be  Ving ?

             he

             she     

Will       it        be   Ving ?

              you    

             they
	I         

we    shall not   be  Ving

he

she      

it       will not be  Ving  

you     

they


Употребление:

1. Для выражения длительного действия, которое будет происходить в какой-то определенный момент в будущем. Этот момент может быть обозначен:

а) точным указанием момента времени:

at 5 o’clock tomorrow – завтра в 5 часов
at that time – в это время
from 5 till 7 – с 5 до 7

I shall be working from 5 till 7 tomorrow. – Я буду работать завтра с 5 до 7. 

б) другим однократным действием, выраженным глаголом в Present Simple в придаточных предложениях времени и условия:

They will be working when you return. –Они будут работать, когда я вернусь. 

2. Для эмоционального подчеркивания длительности действия:

all the day long – весь день
the whole morning tomorrow – все завтрашнее утро
They will be working at the laboratory the whole morning tomorrow. – Они будут работать в лаборатории все завтрашнее утро.

Упражнения:

I. Раскройте скобки, употребляя Future Continuous Tense. Переведите предложения на русский язык.

Образец: I (have) dinner t 7.00. – I’ll be having dinner at 7.00. 

1. At 2.00 tomorrow she (work) in the office. 2. He (not to wait) for us at 6o’clock tomorrow.  3. I (translate) this article, when my mother comes. 4. The conference (take place) from 2 till 6 o’clock. 5. How long you (stay) at your parents? 6. At this time tomorrow I (take) my examination. 7. I (not to work) at the library from 3 till 4 o’clock tomorrow. 8. My father (watch) football at 8 o’clock. 9. We (stay) in Newcastle for about a couple of weeks.  

II. Напишите предложения в отрицательной форме.

Образец: Next year they (live) in Spain. – Next year they won’t be living in Spain.

1. The children (stay) with their grandparents for the summer holidays. 2. At four o’clock on Tuesday afternoon you (fly) over Paris.3. We (watch) the tennis tournament tonight. 4. I (work) at home tomorrow. Don’t call me. 5. Chris (play) golf at 4 o’clock tomorrow afternoon. 6. At 9.30 we (watch) a new video film. 7. They (give) another party at the same time next week.

III. Задайте специальные вопросы к выделенным словам.

Образец: I’ll be finishing this report this time tomorrow. –When will you be finishing this report?

1. The children will be visiting their grandparents at the weekend. 2. I will be lying in bed at this time. 3. My friends will be playing that part in the performance on Friday. 4. We’ll be going on a sightseeing tour next weekend. 5. Alec will be getting a lot of money in this new job. 6. A lot of scientists will be taking part in the conference. 7. We’ll probably be working late on Tuesday.

IV. Переведите на английский язык, употребляя Future Continuous.

1.Завтра я буду работать весь вечер. 2. Завтра мы будем проводить опыты с 2 до 5 часов. 3. Когда мы приедем в лабораторию, они будут показывать свои опыты. 4. Мы не будем играть в шахматы весь вечер. 5. Не приходи ко мне завтра в 3 часа. Я буду учить английский. 6. Они будут ждать тебя ровно в четыре. 7. В это время на следующей неделе я буду отдыхать у моря. 8. Я буду гулять в парке с 7 до 8 часов.

V. Раскройте скобки, употребляя глаголы в Future Simple и Future Continuous.

1. Don’t ring him up at 11 o’clock tomorrow. He (work) at that moment. 2. At this time tomorrow my brothers (play) football. 3. Maybe we (play) football tomorrow. 4. They (come) soon. 5. I’m afraid it (rain) all day tomorrow. 6. When the train (come) my parents (wait) for me at the station. 7. I (finish) this book very soon; I (read) it all day tomorrow. 8. I must tell John that Nick (wait) for him at ten o’clock tomorrow. 9. He (be) busy tomorrow. He (put) electric light in our country-house. 10. What you (to do) all day tomorrow? 11. I (listen) to the radio till you come back. 12. Don’t come tomorrow, I (write) my report. 13. This time tomorrow, I (leave) Moscow for Tula.

The Future Perfect Tense

Будущее совершенное время
	утвердительная форма
	вопросительная форма
	отрицательная форма

	I 

we     shall have V3  

he

she       

it         will have V3    

you       

they
	            I       

Shall  we    have  V3 ?

          he

          she     

Will    it       have V3 ?

          you    

          they
	I          

we      shall not have V3
he

she      
it         will have not  V3
you        

they


Употребление:

Для выражения будущего действия, которое совершится к определенному моменту в будущем. Момент, до которого совершится действие, может быть определен:

а) такими обозначениями времени, как:

by that time – к этому времени

by next year – к следующему году

by 3 o’clock tomorrow–завтра к 3м часам
I shall have translated the article by 5 o’clock tomorrow. – Я переведу статью завтра к 5 часам.

б) другим будущим действием, выраженным глаголом в Present Simple в придаточных предложениях времени и условия:

I shall have finished this work before you return. – Я закончу эту работу до того, как ты придешь. 

Упражнения:

I. Откройте скобки, употребив Future Perfect. Переведите предложения на русский язык.

1. I hope you (go) to bed by eleven. 2. She (listen) to the poem many times before she understands all the words. 3. They (get) into trouble before you can say knife. 4. I hope the telegram (come) before they start for the North. 5. The news of their marriage (reach) their village before they get there. 6. She (be) there many times before she meets him again. 7. They believe the ship (come) back by the end of the navigation. 8. They (take) their last exam by the first of July. 9. He (write) the last chapter of his new book by the end of the year. 10. By the time you come I (clean) the flat and (cook) dinner.                      

II. Закончите предложения, употребляя Future Perfect Tense.

1. By the time you meet him he … (do a lot of work). 2. By the time the lessons are over the pupils … (run out of the classroom). 3. When my letter reaches you I … (move to New York). 4. Before I hear from my sister again I … (make many inquiries about her). 5.  Before supper my father … (look through evening papers). 6. By the time we get there the sun … (set). 7. Before you learn to speak English fluently you … (do many exercises). 8. By the time you get your pay she … (spend all the money).

III. Поставьте глаголы в скобках в Future Perfect Tense. Напишите предложения в вопросительной и отрицательной форме.

Образец: Life will have become (become) more automated by 2100.

Life won’t have become more automated by 2100.

Will life have become more automated by 2100?

1. He (be) Foreign Minister for five years by next year. 2. In two week’s time we (finish) our exams. 3. Next November we  (be) married for fifteen years. 4. I’m sure they (arrive) home by five o’clock tonight.  5. Scientists (learn) to control the weather by 2010.

IV. Переведите на английский язык, употребляя Future Simple, Future Continuous и Future Perfect.

1. Он вернется домой к 15 августа. 2. Через неделю в это время наш теплоход будет приближаться к берегам Кубы. 3. Я буду ждать вас завтра в это же время. 4. Через два дня студенты начнут сдавать экзамены. 5. Не приставай к нему, он очень волнуется: завтра в это время он будет давать свой первый концерт. 6. Надеюсь, к 10 часам вечера концерт уже закончится, и через полчаса дети уже будут дома. 7. Мы уберем квартиру и накроем на стол до того, как придут гости. 8. Он говорит, что придет на вокзал проводить нас. 9. Что вы будете делать завтра в это время? – Буду давать свой первый урок в школе. 10. Строители закончат новую линию метро к 10 мая. 11. Убери свою комнату прежде, чем ты начнешь свои объяснения.

The Future Perfect Continuous Tense.

Будущее совершенно-длительное время

	 утвердительная форма
	вопросительная форма
	отрицательная форма

	I           

we   shall have been Ving

he

she       

it      will have been Ving

you     

they
	              I       

Shall   we  have been Ving?

           he

              she   

Will    it     have been Ving ?

           you  

           they
	I          

we   shall not have been Ving

he

she      

it      will not  have been Ving

you      

they


Употребление: 

Для выражения длительного будущего действия, которое начнется ранее другого будущего действия или момента, и будет еще совершаться в момент его наступления. При этом всегда указан период времени, в течение которого совершается действие.  

I shall begin to work at 10 o’clock. When you return home at 5 o’clock, I shall have been working for 7 hours. – Я начну работать в 10 часов. Когда ты вернешься домой в 5 часов, я буду работать уже 7 часов.

Упражнения: 

I. Поставьте глагол в скобках в форму Future Perfect Continuous. Переведите предложения на русский язык. 

1. By the end of this year we (learn) English for six years. 2. By next September my mother (work) as a teacher for twenty-five years. 3. I (repair) the car for two days before I dare to drive it. 4. By the first of September she (teach) in this school for 25 years. 6. My sister (live) in Minsk for 5 years by the end of this month.  

II. Раскройте скобки, употребив формы Future Perfect или Future Perfect Continuous.

1. I (finish) this book by tomorrow evening. 2. By next winter I (save) the necessary sum of money. 3. I (translate) the article for an hour before you come. 4. By the end of January he (work) at the University for 10 years. 5. On September 26 they (be married) for 25 years. 6. By the end of the month we (live) in this house for two years. 7. If I continue with my diet I (lose) 10 kilos by the end of the month. 8. The train (leave) before we reach the station.

III. Поставьте глагол в скобках в нужную форму будущего времени.

1. I (wait) for you at 5 o’clock tomorrow. 2. I am sure that they (complete) their work by May. 3. At 5 o’clock tomorrow I (have) an English lesson. 4. Tomorrow at this time you (sail) down the Moskva River. 5. I hope it (stop) raining by 5 o’clock. 6. I hope the next mail (bring) news from home. 7. She (return) from the library at 6 o’clock. 8. I (not work) at 8 o’clock. I (finish) my homework by that time. 9. At what time you (be) here? 10. What you (do) at 8 o’clock? – I (work) on my report. 11. I think that he (take) part in this work. 12. Don’t be late. I (wait) for you in the library at 9 o’clock. 13. I am sure that they (fulfill) their production plan by the 15th of December. 14. He (work) the whole day tomorrow. 15. Don’t come at 2 o’clock tomorrow. He (be) busy. He (have) an English lesson at that time. 16. Come at 7 o’clock. The director (sign) all the documents by that time. 17. What you (do) from 6 till 8 tomorrow? – I (write) an article. 18. He (return) to Moscow in a few days. 19. They (take) English lessons twice a week. 20. He can’t come at 2 o’clock tomorrow because he (give) a lesson at that time. 21. We (translate) the article by 5 o’clock. 22. She (leave) home when she is 20. 23. I still (work) at 9 o’clock. 24. By the 1st of June 2005 he (work) at the factory for twenty years. 25. If you come after 11 o’clock, I (sleep). 26. The train (leave) by the time we get to the station. 27. I (begin) to work at 10 o’clock in the morning. When you return home at 5 o’clock, I (work) for 7 hours.

Unit 4

Модальные глаголы

Модальные глаголы обозначают не действия, а отношение к ним. Они выражают способность, возможность, необходимость, вероятность действия.

Модальные глаголы употребляются только в сочетании с инфинитивом смыслового глагола без частицы to (кроме to be to, to have to, ought to).

Вопросы образуются путем постановки модальных глаголов перед подлежащим:

May I come in? Can you translate this text?

Отрицательные предложения образуются при помощи частицы not,  которая ставится после модального глагола:

You mustn’t go there. I can’t translate this text.

	модальный глагол
	формы глагола
	употребление
	пример
	перевод

	can
мочь
	can – наст. время

could – прош. время
shall/will be able to – буд. время

	1. умственная или физическая возможность, умение выполнить действие

2. разрешение, запрещение (в отрицательных предложениях) – при неформальном общении


	I can understand you.

I can lift this box.

I can play the piano.

You can take my book.
	Я могу тебя понять.

Я могу поднять эту коробку.

Я могу играть на пианино.

Ты можешь взять мою книгу.

	may
мочь
	may – наст. время

might – прош. время
shall/will be allowed to – буд. время
	1. разрешение, позволение совершить какое-либо действие

2. предположение, основанное на неуверенности


	May I come in?

He may not be at home.
	Могу я войти?

Возможно, его нет дома.

	must
должен
	
	1. необходимость, обязанность, долг

2. запрещение (в отрицательных предложениях)

3. настойчивый совет, приказ

	Every young man must serve in the army.

You mustn’t smoke in the dining-room.

You must speak to Nick. He is in trouble.
	Каждый молодой человек должен служить в армии.

Ты не должен курить в столовой.

Ты должен поговорить с Николаем. У него неприятности.

	should, 

ought to

следует, должен

	
	1. совет, рекомендация

2. недоумение, удивление, возмущение


	You ought to be more attentive at the lessons.

How should I know?
	Вам следует быть более внимательными на уроках. 

Откуда мне знать?

	have to
должен, вынужден, приходится
	have to/has to – наст. время
had to – прош. время
shall/will have to – буд. время
	Необходимость или обязанность, обусловленная обстоятельствами


	I have to get up at 6 o’clock in the morning.
	Мне приходится вставать в 6 часов утра.

	be to

должен
	am to/is to/are to – наст. время
was to/were to – прош. время

	1. предварительная договоренность, планируемое действие

2. приказы, распоряжения

	Mary and John are to marry in June.

The Principal says I am to arrange the meeting.
	Мэри и Джон должны пожениться в июне.

Директор говорит, что я должен организовать собрание.

	need
нужно
	
	Употребляется в основном в отрицательных предложениях и выражает ненужность совершения действия
	You needn’t come so early.
	Вам не нужно приходить так рано. 


Упражнения:

I. Переведите предложения на русский язык и проанализируйте употребление модальных глаголов в следующих контекстах.

1. Nick can run long distances. 2.  He can speak many foreign languages. 3. You can join our group. 4. I must excuse myself. 5. You mustn’t park the car here. 6. The boy must see a doctor. 7. You may keep my book for a week. 8. Drivers may go at 60 kilometers an hour here. 9. You may stay at your friends’ over the weekend. 10. It may be cold. Take your coat. 11. Jack shouldn’t have laughed at John. 12. John ought to be more careful in the future. 13. You needn’t buy bread. We have some at home. 14. You needn’t have done this. It was useless. 15. I have to take a taxi in order not to be late. 16. We had to wait as the manager was out. 17. Robert is to take his exams next month. 18. We are to meet at 5 o’clock. 

II. Ответьте на вопросы:

1. Can you drive (swim, play the piano)? 2. What can you do in the evening? 3. Where can you buy bread (sugar, meat)?  4. What kind of dictionaries can you find in the library? 5. How many new words can you learn every day? 6. Must you attend all lectures on mathematics? 7. Who must we show the documents to? 8. Why mustn’t we miss the train? 9. May I use your telephone? 10. What may happen to a man if he doesn’t follow the doctor’s advice? 11. Who should accompany you to the party? 12. Where should butter be kept? 13. Need you work so much? 14. Do you have to stay in bed when you are ill? 15. Why do you have to hurry to the station? 16. Is the train to arrive at six? 17. Were you to read Oliver Twist at school?

III. Поставьте вместо точек: can (not)/ could (not), be able to.

1. … you show me that umbrella, please?  2. At the end of the month the Post office will send us a bill which we … (not pay) as you are talking on the telephone for hours every day. 3. When I was a child I … not understand adults. 4. When I first went to England I … neither read nor speak English. 5. I know the town well so I … advise you where to go. 6. …I speak to Mr. Green, please? – He is out at the moment. … you  ring  back later?  7. At the age of five I … read but I … write. 8. I lost my key yesterday and …open the door. 9. When the sun rises  we … to continue our way. 10. … you show me the way to the station? 11. Excuse me, how … I get to the nearest supermarket? 12. The boy was very tired but he ...   reach  the opposite shore of the river. 13. If you don’t help me I … fix this shelf on the wall. 14. What …help people live through a difficult time? 

IV. Поставьте вместо точек один из модальных глаголов: must, have to, be to, need в отрицательной или утвердительной форме.

1. You …. explain anything. I know everything. 2. Tom … get up early yesterday. 3. You … send for the doctor. 4. I … finish the work yesterday, but I … didn’t have enough time. 5. My friend is ill and I … visit him today. 6. I … make a report so I … go to the library this week. 7. The car … be parked on the pavement. 8. The students … do the whole exercise. Ten sentences are enough. 9. I … go shopping today. There is enough food in the house.

V. Употребите may/might или be allowed to. 

1. You …find this book at any library. 2. … I speak to you for a moment? 3. … I see your passport, please? 4.I … never be able to see you again. 5. You ought to buy it now; prices … go up. 6. When he was a child he … do exactly as he liked. 7. Warning: No part of this book … be reproduced without the publisher’s permission. 8. The teacher said to the students that they … find this book at any library. 9. He has refused but he … change his mind if you ask him again. 10. She … not… to drive since the accident. 11. … I come in? – Please do. 12. It … rain, you’d better take an umbrella. 13. He said that it …rain. 14. He … not believe you.  

VI. Заполните пропуски модальными глаголами can, may, must, should.
1. Nina is ill. She ... stay in bed.  2. Drivers ... stop when they see the red light. 3. Betty asked: "... I open the window?" 4. Betty asked her father: "... I go to the concert tonight?" Her father said, "Yes, you … go". 5. Mary is free tonight. She ... go to the dance. 7. Alec will have an English lesson tomorrow. He ... study tonight. 8. Mark is a good student. He ... speak English well. 9. There is no ink in my pen. ... I write with a pencil? 10. My friend gave me an interesting book to read. She said, "You ... keep it for seven days." 11. You... do what the doctor says. 12. You ... study much if you want to pass the examination well. 13. You ... not smoke in the dining-room.  14. Little children ... go to bed early. 15. If you are ill, you ... consult a doctor.

VII. Поставьте вместо точек нужный по смыслу модальный глагол:

1. Let us ask mother. She … know  his address. 2. You … drink cold water if you don’t want to fall ill. 3. … you help me? –I am afraid not. 4. You … interrupt me when I am speaking. 5. Pupils … talk during the lesson. 6. It … rain, take your raincoat. 7. My father … be at his office now as it is 8 o’clock already. 8. … I switch on the radio? – Yes, you … 9. … I smoke here? – No, you … .10. You … take my pencil for a moment. 11. I … finish work today. I am tired.

VIII. Дополните предложения, употребляя модальные глаголы или их эквиваленты в утвердительной или отрицательной форме.

1. …you remember the address? – I … not even remember the street. 2. The sick man had restless night, but he … sleep for an hour or two. 4. He was very strong, he … ski all day and dance all night. 4. When they buy a car, they …visit their friends more often. 5. You … ring the bell, I have a key. 6. You …drink this: it is a poison. 7. The buses were all full, I … get a taxi. 8. What were your instructions about phoning, Bill? – I … phone him at 6.00. 9. That hat doesn’t suit you, you … buy another one. 10. Tom was often late and his father told him that he … wake up earlier. 11. The policeman told the driver that he … drive more carefully. 12. The woman is looking ill.  She … see a doctor.

IX. Переведите.
Ты можешь помочь мне сейчас? – Извини, не могу. Я должна идти домой, мне придется остаться дома с сыном моей сестры. Она должна была уехать в командировку вчера. Я смогу тебе помочь завтра, если ты можешь подождать.- Когда ты должна быть дома? – Я обещала приехать домой в 7 часов вечера. Как часто тебе приходится заботиться о своем племяннике? – Когда могу, я всегда готова помочь сестре, потому что ей приходится воспитывать сына одной. – Можно мне приехать к тебе домой сегодня вечером? – Конечно.

X. Ответьте на следующие вопросы.

1. What subjects must you study at your department?  2. Whom are you to meet at the station? 3. Can you lend me your text book?  4. May I ask her some questions? 5. Must one work hard at a foreign language if one wants to master it? 6. Can they take part in the performance? 7. He was able to win the match, though it was very difficult. 8. May I use your dictionary? 9. Need your mother cook for the whole family? 10. Can the latest novel by N. be found anywhere? 11. May I have a look at your book?

XI. Задайте вопросы к выделенным словам.

1. The problem should be discussed again. 2. Lomonosov may be considered as the founder of Russian science. 3. All the students will be able to take part in the concert. 4. I can image her teaching children. 5. The sitting was to take place at one o’clock. 6. It may cost me a lot of money. 7. We have to finish the translation by tomorrow. 8. My mother must do the shopping in our family. 9. Will you be able to prove his innocence? 10. Why can’t you admit that you were wrong? 11. He may know about it but he doesn’t want to tell us. 12. The weather may be fine tomorrow. 13. Your announcement may attract her attention. 14. They must still be taking their exam. 15. Can she know the Spanish language? 16. Can I be fit for this? 17 He cannot have been there yesterday. 18. It must have been true. 19. Can this information be relied on? 20. She was to become a film star.  

XII. Переведите предложения на русский язык.

1.Это очень интересная статья. Вам следует прочитать её. 2. Я, должно быть, встречал где-то этого человека. 3. Нужно ли повторять это опять? 4. Вам следовало спросить разрешения, прежде чем взять книгу. 5. Вы можете найти этот справочник в любом книжном магазине. 6. Вы могли бы сказать мне об этом раньше. 7. Не может быть, чтобы он отказался помочь вам. 8. Эксперимент, должно быть, закончен. Результаты должны быть опубликованы на этой неделе. 9. Эти туфли придется починить. 10. Мы должны были встретиться у входа в театр в половине седьмого. 11. Вам не следует упоминать об этом в его присутствии . 12. Вам не следует беспокоиться об этом. 13. Вы можете встретить это выражение в любом словаре. 14. Неужели вы не нашли свой ключ?  15. Не может быть, чтобы она сейчас нас ждала. 

Unit 5

Страдательный залог (The Passive Voice)

Глагол в страдательном залоге выражает действие, которое направлено на предмет или лицо, выраженное подлежащим. 

Страдательный залог образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to be в соответствующем времени, лице и числе и причастия прошедшего времени смыслового глагола:

to be + Participle II (V3)

	
	Simple
	Continuous
	Perfect

	Present
	I                     am
he, she, it        is           V3
we, you, they   are
	I                     am   
he, she, it        is         being V3
we, you, they   are
	I                        have 

we, you, they                been V3
he, she, it           has

	Past
	
I, he, she, it     was
we, you, they   were      V3
	
I, he, she, it    was
we, you, they  were     being V3
	
I, he, she, it    

we, you, they        had  been V3

	Future
	I, we           shall
he, she, it,                be V3

you, they     will
	 ------------------------------------
	I, we          shall
he, she, it               have been V3
you, they     will


Вопросительная форма образуется путем переноса 1го вспомогательного глагола на 1е место (перед подлежащим). В специальных вопросах вспомогательный глагол ставится после вопросительного слова.

Is the house being built now? – Дом строится сейчас?

Who was the novel written by? – Кем был написан роман?

Отрицательная форма образуется при помощи отрицательной частицы not, которая ставится после 1го вспомогательного глагола:

The article will not be written tomorrow. – Статья не будет написана завтра. 

Перевод глаголов в страдательном залоге на русский язык
1. соответствующей страдательной конструкцией:

Many pictures were destroyed by the fire. – Огнем было уничтожено много картин.

2. Возвратной формой глагола в соответствующем времени (глагол с частицей –сь, -ся):

The house is being built in our street. – Дом строится на нашей улице.

3. Глаголом в действительном залоге в 3м лице множественного числа с неопределенно-личным значением:

The question has already been discussed. – Вопрос уже обсудили.

4. Безличные конструкции переводят следующим образом:

It is known that … - Известно, что …

It is said that … - Говорят, что …

It should be mentioned that … - Следует упомянуть, что … 

Упражнения: 

I. Сравните образование и употребление видовременных форм глаголов действительного и страдательного залогов. Предложения переведите. 

The Active Voice

a) They usually close the shop at 8. 

They closed the shop at 8 yesterday. 

They will close the shop at 8 tomorrow. 

b) The students are translating the text now.

The students were translating the text the whole lesson yesterday.

The students will be translating the text the whole lesson tomorrow.

c) We have just written the test.

We had written the test before the bell rang.

We shall have written the test before the bell rings.

The Passive Voice

The shop is usually closed at 8. 

The shop was closed at 8 yester day.

The shop will be closed at 8 tomorrow.

The text is being translated by the students now.

The text was being translated by the students the whole lesson yesterday.

-------------------------------------

The test has just been written.

The test had been written before the bell rang.

The test will have been written before the bell rings.

II. Переведите предложения на русский язык. Назовите глаголы, стоящие  в страдательном залоге.

1. Marmalade is made from oranges. 2. This town was built a century ago. 3. They were invited to a birthday party. 4. The fax has just been sent. 5. America was discovered long ago. 6. The book is still being published. 7. My neighbours’ car was stolen last night. 8. His winter boots were made in Germany. 9. The lecture will be attended by many students. 10. The building was ruined by the earthquake. 11. Italian is spoken in Italy and on Malta. 12. I am sure some way out will be found. 13. When he came home, dinner was being cooked. 14. Have you been asked about it? 15. He was thanked for his help. 16. She was told the news when she returned home. 17. He was offered some interesting work. 18. Our university was founded in 1921. 19. You will be met at the station. 20. The houses will have been built by September.

III. Переделайте предложения из действительного залога в страдательный.

1. My father built this cottage. 2. Somebody is opening the window now. 3. He can easily translate this article. 4. We sold the last French textbook. 5. People all over Russia watch the news. 6. Don’t worry, we shall settle your problems. 7. You must do it at once. 8. We have just sent for the doctor. 9. Thomas Coryate brought forks from Italy to England. 10. He has just repaired his car. 11.The secretary is still typing the letter. 12. Snow covered everything. 13. Nobody had visited him. 14. They may change the day of the meeting. 15. We always invite him to our place. 16. The students often see him in the club. 17. They will allow the children to watch TV. 18. They published his book last year. 19. They will build the house in a month. 20. Glinka composed the opera “Ivan Susanin”.

IV. Переделайте предложения из страдательного залога в действительный.

1. Lewis Carroll is remembered as the author of Alice in Wonderland. 2. My paintings will be exhibited at the Picture Gallery. 3. The child was taken to the circus. 4. The first spaceship was constructed by the Soviet scientists. 5. The doctor must be sent at once. 6. The problem is being discussed now. 7. I was told about your decision. 8. The house was destroyed by the fire. 9. I must go. I am being waited for. 10. The children are often left home alone.

V. Переделайте предложения с двумя дополнениями  в страдательный залог.

 Образец: My friend gave me an interesting book.

· An interesting book was given to me.

· I was given an interesting book.

1. They showed us the postcards of New Year. 2. The teacher told the students the story of Washington. 3. My father promised me to bring an interesting book about London. 4. They gave him a chance. 5. The grandmother read the grandson a fairy-tale.

Unit 6

Неличные формы глагола

§ 1. Причастие (The Participle)

Причастие – это неличная форма глагола, в которой сочетаются признаки прилагательного или наречия с признаками глагола. 

В английском языке различают 2 вида причастий: Participle I и Participle II. 

Participle I
Participle I соответствует русскому причастию с суффиксами –ущ, -ющ, -ащ, -ящ (asking – спрашивающий, writing - пишущий), а также деепричастию несовершенного вида с суффиксами –а, -я (going – идя, crying – плача) или совершенного вида с суффиксом –в (seeing – увидев).

Функции:

1) определение:

а) перед определяемым словом: 

a shining star – сияющая звезда
б) после определяемого слова:

The stars shining in the dark sky seem blue. – Звезды, сияющие в темном небе, кажутся голубыми.

2) обстоятельство (отвечает на вопросы как? когда?):

Translating the article he consulted the dictionary. – Переводя статью, он пользовался словарем. 

Participle II
Participle II является страдательным причастием прошедшего времени с суффиксами-окончаниями –нный, -емый, -имый, -тый (a forgotten song – забытая песня).

Функции:

1) определение:

а) перед определяемым словом: 

The injured man was taken to hospital. – Потерпевшего отвезли в больницу.

б) после определяемого слова:

The theatre built in the last century needed reconstruction. – Театр, построенный в прошлом веке, нуждался в реконструкции.

2) обстоятельство (часто с союзами if, unless, when):

When asked this question, the student could not answer it at once. – Когда студенту задали этот вопрос, он не смог ответить на него сразу.

Сложные формы причастий

	
	Active
	Passive

	Present Participle I
	Ving
	being V3

	Perfect Participle I
	having V3
	having been V3

	Participle II
	
	V3


Формы Present Participle употребляются для обозначения действия, одновременного с действием глагола в личной форме: 

Being late I took a taxi. – Так как я опаздывал, я взял такси.

Формы Perfect Participle употребляются для обозначения действия, предшествующего действию глагола в личной форме:

Having passed the exams he went to the Crimea. – Сдав экзамены, он поехал в Крым.

Participle II имеет только одну форму, которая совпадает с 3й формой глагола.

Причастные обороты

I. Objective-with-the-Present-Participle (объектный падеж с причастием настоящего времени)

cуществ./местоим.           + Participle I

(в объектном падеже)

Употребляется после глаголов to feel, to find, to hear, to listen, to look, to notice, to see, to watch.

I hear the bell ringing in the next room. – Я слышу, как звенит звонок в соседней комнате.

She watched the children playing in the yard. – Она наблюдала, как дети играли во дворе.

II. Objective-with-the-Past-Participle (объектный падеж с причастием прошедшего времени)

cуществ./местоим.           + Participle II
(в объектном падеже)

Употребляется после глаголов to have, to get, to want, to wish, to watch, to hear, to see, to find.

I want to have a new dress made. – Я хочу сшить новое платье.

I want to have my hair cut. – Я хочу подстричь волосы.

III. Nominative-with-the-Participle (субъектный причастный оборот)

сущ.           местоим.   + Participle 

общ.п.        им.п.

Употребляется после глаголов восприятия.

The students were heard speaking about their exams. – Слышали, как ученики разговаривали об экзаменах.

The teacher was seen surrounded by the students. – Видели, как ученики окружили учителя.

IV. The Absolute Participial Construction (абсолютный причастный оборот)

Это оборот, в котором причастие имеет свое собственное подлежащее, выраженное существительным в общем падеже  или личным местоимением, или словом there.

На русский язык переводится придаточным предложением с союзами так как, после того, как, если, когда:

The weather being fine, we went for a walk. – Так как погода была хорошая, мы отправились на прогулку.

Если оборот стоит в начале предложения, то он переводится самостоятельным предложением с союзами а, причем, в то время как:

My mother was cooking dinner, my sister helping her. – Моя мама готовила обед, а сестра помогала ей.

Упражнения: 

I. Прочитайте текст и скажите, какие формы причастия употреблены в нем.

People living in Japan have some customs different from ours. For example, we wipe our washed faces with dry towels (полотенце), they wipe their faces with wet towels. Entering houses our men take off their hats, the Japanese take off their shoes. We give presents when arriving, they live them when departing. When in mourning (траур) we wear black, they wear white. We frown (хмуриться) when being scolded (бранить), they smile. When we say that Japanese are strange people, they could reply, “The same to you.” 

II. Прочитайте и переведите на русский язык следующие словосочетания, обращая внимание на причастия.

a) the student attending all the lectures

the plan containing many details

the workers building a new house

the engineer using a new method

the car developing the speed of 80 km

the plant producing machinery

the growing population of the country

the student studying foreign languages

the young man entering the Institute

the engineer carrying the research

b) using new  methods

constructing new methods

achieving goods results

dividing the apple into three parts

discovering new lands

graduating from the Institute

moving at high speed

leaving the town

using new equipment

refusing to give an explanation

receiving important information

constructing new roads

c) having entered the Institute

having calculated the distance

having developed the speed of 120 km

having introduced new methods of work

having decided to leave the city

having divided the apple into here parts

having installed a new equipment

having obtained the necessary information

having found the new way

having changed his behaviour
having offered her his help

having passed all examination

having returned home

d) the achieved results

all developed countries

the apple divided into three parts

the information obtained recently

the railway built between the two towns

the boy saved by his dog

help offered by the teacher

the lecture read by a well-known professor

the research made in the laboratory

the film shown to the students

the letter sent to his parents

the book left on the table  

the news brought to him

III. а) Образуйте Participle I (Indefinite, Active) от следующих глаголов и переведите их на русский язык.

To build, to grow, to think, to bring, to determine, to follow, to move, to refuse, to obtain, to contain, to produce, to use, to include, to offer, to enter, to get, to happen, to carry, to teach, to tell, to make, to begin, to keep, to divide, to return, to develop, to save.

b) Образуйте Participle II от следующих глаголов и переведите их на русский язык.

To find, to send, to throw, to add, to change, to keep, to take, to save, to maintain, to install, to consider, to burn, to achieve, to show, to develop, to decide, to receive, to leave, to equip, to divide, to return, to write, to read, to make, to do, to give, to see, to speak.

IV. Переведите следующие словосочетания на английский язык.

a) профессор, читающий лекцию

студент, изучающий английский

методы, улучшающие исследовательскую работу

девочка, спрашивающая дорогу

инженер, знающий иностранный язык

человек, предлагающий свою помощь

мальчики, играющие на улице

студент, сдающий экзамен 

народ, строящий новую жизнь

развивающиеся страны

инженер, использующий новые достижения науки

 расширяющиеся газы

b) студент, спрошенный преподавателем

книга, оставленная дома

книга, взятая в библиотеке

университет, основанный Ломоносовым 
завод, увеличивающий производство продукции

письмо, найденное в столе 
машина, сконструированная молодым инженером

железная дорога, построенная молодыми рабочими
оборудование, установленное в лаборатории

экзамен, сданный успешно

проблема, решенная успешно

c) изучая иностранный язык

читая книгу 
строя дороги

сдавая экзамены

увеличивая скорость

объединяя народы

отказываясь помогать

устанавливая новое оборудование

производя новые автомобили

покидая город

улучшая уличное движение

оставаясь дома

играя в теннис

применяя новые методы

работая на заводе

переводя текст на русский язык

d) прочитав интересную книгу

оставив дочь дома

окончив институт 

закончив работу

получив новую информацию 

построив дорогу 

открыв новый элемент 

решив важную проблему 

получив письмо

оставшись дома один 

закрыв дверь 

соединив две части города 

встретив друга, с которым не виделся много лет

закончив делать упражнение 

сдав все экзамены
V. Переведите следующие предложения на русский язык, обращая внимание на причастия 

1. He heard the voices coming through the open window. 2. Waiting for him I looked through the magazines lying on the table. 3. They remained at home refused to go anywhere that day. 4. The channel linking the two seas is being built now. 5. The explanation given was not complete.  6. The new materials recommended for bridge construction was described in the article written by our professor. 7. The results received were of great importance for further work. 8. A balsa tree found in South America is lighter than any other. 9. Having passed all the examinations he left for his native town. 10. Having been shown the way I could find his native town. 11. Having waited for him for half an hour they went home.          

VI. Определите форму и функцию причастия в следующих предложениях. Переведите их на русский язык.

1. This is the book so much spoken about. 2. Having realized that she had missed the train the woman began to walk slowly. 3. The method followed by our scientists was not simple. 4. She was walking slowly stopping sometimes to have a short rest. 5. Having found no one at home he went to his neighbors. 6 .A letter lying on the table must be posted. 7. If asked he will explain you everything. 8. We came up to the crying girl to ask where her mother was. 9. Here is the telegram announcing his death. 10. I saw him working in the garden. 11. I heard them speaking in the next room.

VII. Преобразуйте предложения, употребив причастия в функции   

а) определения; б) обстоятельства времени, причины.

а)  Образец: The man who is reading a book is my father. -   The man   reading a book is my father.

1. I took the newspaper which was lying on the table. 2. The house which is being built opposite my house is a modern nine-storeyed building. 3. The books which have been written by Picul are read with interest. 4. The pupil who is being asked by the teacher is Pavlov. 5. The car which is parked in front of the house is mine.

 б)  Образец: As he was busy he refused an invitation. - Being busy he refused an invitation.

1. As he was late he had to excuse himself. 2. As he had spent all his money he decided to go home. 3. When they were going home they met their teacher. 4. While he was translating the text, he wrote out new words. 5. After they had visited the museum they decided to have a cup of coffee. 6. The girl entered the room and didn’t lock it.

VIII. Объедините следующие предложения, употребив нужную форму причастия. 

Образец:  He was ill. He had to stay at home. -   Being ill he had to stay at home.

1. I knew that he was poor. I offered him a room. 2. She didn’t want to listen to the story again.  She had heard it before. 3. She entered the room suddenly. She found them smoking. 4. I had looked through the fashion magazine. I realized that my clothes were out of date. 5. She turned out the light. She was surprised at what she saw. 6. I fed the dog. I sat down to my own dinner. 7. I sat in the front row. I saw everything beautifully. 8. She was singing a song. I heard it.

IX. Выберите правильный вариант.

1.Having finished the translation she typed it. 

1. заканчивая  2. закончив  3. законченный
2. The student being asked by the teacher is Smirnov.

1. которого спрашивают  2. спрошенный  3. спрашивая

3. Having been defeated, the enemy had to retreat.

1. потерпев поражение  2. терпящий поражение

4. The problem being discussed now is very important. 

1. обсуждая 2. обсуждаемая
5. Having read many books on the problem, he made an interesting report.

1. читая 2. читающий 3. прочитав
6. The house being built in our street is a new school.

1.строящийся 2. построенный 3. построив

7. Having been signed by both sides the treaty came into force soon. 

1. подписавший 2. подписанный  3. подписав
8.Having refused to accept the invitation he left the office.

1.отказывая 2. отказав 3. отказавшись

X. Выберите правильный вариант.

1. ( Сдав ) all the examinations we decided to go on a tour.

1. passing  2. having passed  3.  being passed

2. (Когда  ему сказали) to stay he refused. 

1.telling  2. having told  3 being told

3. (Закончив ) the translation we gave it to the teacher.

1. having finished  2.  finishing   3.  being finished

4. (Потеряв )  the key I couldn’t enter the room.

1. losing  2.  being lost  3.  having lost

5. The plant (строящийся) here will produce radio-sets.

1. building  2.  having been built  3.  being built

6. (Оставшись) alone  I decided to finish my work.

1. leaving  2.  being left  3.  having left

7. (Получив) the telegram I hurried to meet my friend.

1. having received  2.  receiving  3.  being received

8. The letter (отправленное ) today will be received in two days.

1. sending  2.  being sent  3.  having sent

9. (Сломанное) by the wind the tree was lying on the road. 

1. breaking   2.  having broken  3.  broken

10. (Позавтракав) she went to the institute.

1. having breakfast  2.  having had breakfast

XI. Переведите на английский.

1. Мне нравятся все статьи, написанные этим ученым. 2. Вот картина, о которой так много говорят. 3. Я бы хотел, чтобы статью отпечатали сегодня. 4. Я не был на собрании, которое проводилось в университете. 5. Мы слышали, как декан выступал на собрании. 6. Я полагаю, что все будет сделано через несколько дней. 7. Так как день был теплый, мы открыли окно. 8. Когда ему дали больше времени, он смог перевести статью. 9. Она сидела в кресле, просматривая газеты. 

§2. Инфинитив (The Infinitive)

Инфинитив – это неопределенная форма глагола, формальным признаком которой является частица to. 

Чаще всего инфинитив употребляется после глагола в личной форме или после модального глагола (без частицы to, кроме to be to, to have to, ought to): 

I like to play tennis. – Я люблю играть в теннис.

I can play tennis well. – Я могу хорошо играть в теннис.

Инфинитив без частицы to употребляется также в следующих случаях:

1) после глаголов to make - заставлять, to let -позволять, to have - помогать;

2) после выражений had better – лучше бы, would rather – предпочел бы;

3) когда два инфинитива соединены союзами and, or, but, than, второй инфинитив употребляется без частицы to.

В английском языке инфинитив имеет следующие формы времени и залога:

	
	Active
	Passive

	Indefinite

Continuous

Perfect

Perfect Continuous
	to ask

to be asking

to have asked

to have been asking


	to be asked

---------------

to have been asked

---------------


Функции инфинитива в предложении:

	функция
	пример
	перевод

	1. подлежащее

2. часть составного глагольного сказуемого

3. дополнение

4. определение

5. обстоятельство


	To read aloud is very useful.

Our aim is to master English.

He likes to draw.

Here is the article to be translated.

I came to help you.
	Читать вслух очень полезно.

Наша цель – овладеть английским.

Он любит рисовать.

Вот статья, которую нужно перевести.

Я пришел, чтобы помочь вам.


Инфинитивные конструкции

I. Сложное дополнение (Complex Object)

Сложное дополнение – это конструкция, состоящая из существительного или объектного местоимения и инфинитива. Причем действие, выраженное инфинитивом, выполняет сам объект, а не подлежащее главного предложения.

сущ.           местоим.   + Infinitive
общ.п.        объектн.п.

На русский язык оборот переводится  придаточным предложением, вводимым союзами что, чтобы, как.

После таких глаголов как to want, to expect, to consider, to wish,  to find, to get, to believe, to know, to ask, would like, would  prefer инфинитив употребляется с частицей to. 

I want you to come. – Я хочу, чтобы ты пришел.

We expect him to join us. – Мы ожидаем, что он присоединится к нам.

I would prefer you to stay here. – Я бы предпочел, чтобы ты остался здесь.

После глаголов to see, to watch, to hear, to feel, to make, to let частица to не употребляется:

She felt somebody look at her. – Она почувствовала, что кто-то на нее смотрит.

The students heard him play the piano. – Студенты слышали, как он играл на пианино.

II. Сложное подлежащее (Complex Subject)

Сложное подлежащее – это конструкция, состоящая из существительного или личного местоимения в именительном падеже и инфинитива, следующего за сказуемым.

сущ.           местоим.   + глагол + Infinitive
общ.п.        им.п.

Действие, выраженное инфинитивом, выполняет субъект, который является в предложении подлежащим.

На русский язык такая конструкция переводится неопределенно-личными предложениями типа: «говорят, что …», «думают, что…», «известно, что …».

Конструкция «сложное подлежащее»  употребляется со следующими глаголами в страдательном залоге: to hear, to see, to find, to know, to report, to expect, to consider, to believe, to say, to suppose:

The conference is believed to take place in Minsk. – Полагают, что конференция состоится в Минске.

He is said to know several foreign languages. – Говорят, что он знает несколько иностранных языков.

«Сложное подлежащее» употребляется со следующими глаголами в действительном залоге: to seem, to appear, to happen, to be sure, to be likely: 

The dinner seems to be ready. – Кажется, обед готов.

They are sure to come. – Безусловно, они придут.

III. Инфинитивный оборот с предлогом for
Этот оборот состоит из существительного или местоимения, перед которым стоит предлог for, и инфинитива.

for + сущ. (местоим.) + инфинитив
He waited for her to speak. – Он ждал, чтобы она заговорила.

It’s difficult for me to translate this text. – Мне трудно перевести этот текст.

Упражнения:

I. Отметьте  активные и пассивные инфинитивы и переведите.

1. It is good to be listened to. 2. It is good to listen as much advice as possible. 3. The young programmer wanted to be instructed by the professor. 4. The professor wanted to instruct the young programmer. 5. The company wants to help the user. 6. The users want to be helped by the company.

II. Подчеркните  инфинитивы и переведите, обращая внимание на форму инфинитива.

1. He doesn’t like to ask questions. 2. He doesn’t like to be asked. 3. I’m glad to have invited them. 4. I’m glad to have been invited. 5. I’m sorry to trouble you. 6. I’m sorry to have troubled you. 7. I’m glad to be working with you. 8. I’m glad to have been working with you all these years.

III. Переведите фразы с инфинитивами.

1. He seems to be sleeping. 2. It is necessary for a programmer to be patient. 3. To learn everything by heart is impossible. 4. What to answer him must be thought over. 5. I’ve got a call to make. 6. There is nothing to argue about. 7. I’ve no idea how to get there. 8. To hesitate is to lose. 9. He is sure to come. 10. She seems to be not so stupid. 11. I would like you to hurry them up. 12. We allowed them to carry out the experiment. 13. He asked him not to interfere. 14. He was made to agree.
IV. Переведите согласно моделям.

1. I’ve got nobody to afraid of. Have you got anything to tell?

Мне нужно позвонить. У меня много дел. Ему есть, чем гордиться. У нас есть что вспомнить.

2. The first thing to discuss is to get in touch with them. The next step to take is to buy a car.

Первое, что нужно сделать, это обсудить план. Следующее, что нужно сделать, это утвердить план.

3. There is nothing to speak about. There was something to discuss.

Поговорить было не с кем. Смеяться здесь не над чем.

4. The word is easy to pronounсе. She is difficult to please.

Его адрес легко запомнить. Вам трудно угодить.

5. Mr. Wright turned out to be a very cheerful man.

Статья оказалась очень трудной. Она оказалась очень рассеянной.

6. Walter was the first to be examined. Who will be the next to answer? 

Кто выступал первым? Меня экзаменовали последним. Я первым узнал ее.

7. I want to forget it. He ordered the review to be published.

Он хочет, чтобы вы забыли это. Энн хочет, чтобы о ее дочери позаботились. Энн хочет, чтобы вы позаботились  о ее дочери.

8. Have someone call a doctor.

Пусть кто-нибудь купит газеты. Пусть он позовет врача.

9. He allows me to use his telephone. The chief ordered the machine to be changed.

Инспектор приказал арестовать этого человека. Кто разрешил изменить заглавие статьи?

V. Прочитайте и переведите следующие предложения. Найдите сложное дополнение и объясните, из чего оно состоит.

1. I want you to listen to me and I expect you to understand me. 2. If you don’t want anyone to know your business, keep your mouth shut. 3. What made you decide to enter that competition? 4. They wanted her to relax and sent the children to her aunt’s. 5. Everybody knows him to be a responsible man. 6. Sunglasses always make you look mysterious. 7. The desire for success makes Martin work hard. It doesn’t let him rest a minute. 8. Let me take you to the Milky Way on your holiday! 9. It takes two to make a dream come true. 10. Don’t let that fool you! 11. The boss expects you to finish the report by Monday. Would you like me to help you? 12. I don’t let my children watch TV shows that are violent. Some of them will make your hair stand on end. 13. We saw Megan cross the street and enter the supermarket. 14. I have never heard anyone to speak badly of him. 

VI. Перефразируйте следующие предложения.  

  Образец: He did it. They saw it. – They saw him do it.

1. She said that. Everybody heard it. 2. The burglar got into the house. The neighbours noticed it. 3. The car disappeared in the tunnel. The policeman saw it. 4. The poet read some more of his poetry. The public made him do it. 5. Don’t worry! You will go to the party. We’ll let it. 6. Bill apologized. His father told him to do it. 7. He is an expert in his sphere. They think so. 9. He really said it. Mike heard it. 10. We shall go to the party together. I would like that. 11. The car disappeared round the corner. The boy saw it. 12, Mary is the best girl in the world. Ted believes it. 13. Your kids often watch horror films before going to bed. You shouldn’t let that. 14. It is a misunderstanding. I believe it. 15. You must tell me the truth. 

VII. Употребите частицу to, если это необходимо.

1. We expect everybody … join us and … have fun. 2. You can’t make me … do such things. 3. It would be foolish to let the child … have his way. 4. We heard the postman … come up to the front door and then we saw him …slip a thick envelope into the box. 5. He got them … rebuild the house. 6. The neighbour saw a stranger  … enter the house through the back door. 7. – What made you … terrorize me? – I was made … do it. 8. Why can’t you let your son … decide his future? 9. We don’t want anyone … interfere. 10. He noticed her suddenly … turn pale. 11. Tracey had never expected Alan … betray her. 12. I think this painting … be a masterpiece. 13. Let him … rest till he feels better. 14. She felt her shoes … pinch. 15. I won’t have you … say it behind my back.

   VIII. Переведите следующие предложения. 

1. Он хочет, чтобы вы забыли это. 2. Ей хотелось, чтобы ее сын стал юристом. 3. Никто из нас не слышал, как она говорила это. 4. Мы не слышали, как звонил звонок. 5. Мы считали, что эта работа была сделана хорошо. 6. Он полагал, что её любят все. 7. Мы знаем, что он принимал участие в дискуссии. 8. Мне не нравится, что вы курите здесь. 8. Я хочу, чтобы ты помог мне сделать эту работу. 9. Они предполагают, что Ольга присоединится к ним. 10. Дайте мне знать о ваших планах. 11. Пожалуйста, не заставляйте меня ждать. У меня мало времени. 12. – А что заставляет вас так думать? - Мой жизненный опыт. 13. Терпеть не могу, когда ты вмешиваешься в мою жизнь. 

IX. Прочитайте и переведите следующие предложения. Найдите сложное подлежащее и объясните, из чего оно состоит.

1. The problem is known to have interested economists for many years. 2. The fact happened to become known to everybody. 3. He seems to have given up this view. 4. The process was not expected to be effective. 5. He was not likely to give up the idea without a struggle. 6. The country is known to export oil. 7. English is known to have adopted a lot of French words. 7. The conference was announced to have started its work. 8. The minister was reported to have made a speech at Cairo airport. 9. Mr. Johnson is considered to be an experienced lawyer. 10. This engineer is said to have invented a new machine. 11. This experiment is said to have been completed successfully. 12. They are known to live in Siberia. 13. She is expected to come here tonight. 

X. Переведите следующие предложения. 

1. Известно, что Китай – самая населенная страна. 2. Считают, что он лучший специалист в этой области. 3. Вероятно, он приедет утром. 4. Его считают опытным юристом. 5. Её считают хорошим врачом. 6. Он обязательно вам поможет. 7. Мы, кажется, мало знаем об этом. 8. Объявлено, что эксперимент завершен. 9. Опыт оказался неудачным. 10. Оказалось, что он неплохо говорит по-испански. 11. Предполагают,  что он уехал на юг. 12. Говорят, что сын похож на отца. 13. Известно, что он талантливый писатель. 14. Вероятно, мой друг приедет сегодня. 15. Эту статью легко понять. 16. говорят, что он пишет курсовую работу. 17. Я видел, как мальчик бежал. 18. Я слышал, как он разговаривал в соседней комнате. 19. Он заставил их работать. 20. Сообщают, что делегация уже прибыла. 21. Жить – значит творить. 22. Я хочу, чтобы они пришли сюда вовремя. 23. Все ждали, когда начнется собрание. 24. Ему легко это сделать. 25. Сейчас слишком поздно, чтобы дети шли гулять. 

§3. Герундий (The Gerund)

Герундий – это неличная форма глагола, соединяющая в себе свойства существительного и глагола и выражающая действие как процесс (reading - чтение, waiting - ожидание). 

Формы герундия
	
	Active
	Passive

	Indefinite
	Ving
	being V3

	Perfect
	having V3
	having been V3


Функции герундия в предложении и способы его перевода на русский язык

	функция
	употребление
	примеры
	перевод

	подлежащее
	
	Swimming is my favourite sport.
	Плавание – мой любимый вид спорта.

	именная часть составного сказуемого
	после глаголов:

to stop – прекращать

to finish – заканчивать
to continue, to go on, to keep – продолжать
to begin, to start – начинать
	Stop talking!

Go on reading the text.
	Прекратите разговаривать!

Продолжайте читать текст.

	дополнение:

а) прямое 

б) предложное 
	после глаголов:

to like – нравиться

to need – нуждаться
to prefer – предпочитать
to remember – помнить
to enjoy – получать удовольствие

to mind – возражать
to excuse – извинять
to be busy – быть занятым
to be worth - стоить 

после глаголов с предлогами:

to depend on – зависеть от
to rely on – полагаться на
to object to – возражать против
to blame for – винить за
to thank for – благодарить за

to be responsible for – отвечать за
to be fond of – увлекаться
to be tired of – уставать от
to be afraid of – бояться
to look forward to – с нетерпением ожидать
	I prefer reading historical novels.

I don’t mind going there.

I’m afraid of making mistakes.

I’m tired of arguing with you.

He is fond of playing chess.


	Я предпочитаю читать исторические романы.

Я не против пойти туда.

Я боюсь сделать ошибку.

Я устал спорить с вами.

Он увлекается игрой в шахматы.



	определение
	после абстрактных существительных с предлогами:

way of – способ
opportunity of – возможность
hope of – надежда
experience in – опыт
reason for – причина
interest in – интерес
importance of – важность, значение
	I saw no other way of doing it.

You have no reason for saying that.
	Я не видел другого способа сделать это.

У вас нет причин говорить это.

	обстоятельство

а) времени

б) образа действия
	употребляется с предлогами after, before, on
by, without, instead of, besides
	Before having dinner you must wash your hands.

She left home without looking at me.
	Перед обедом надо помыть руки.

Она вышла из дома, не взглянув на меня.


После глаголов to finish, to go on, to keep on, to enjoy, to excuse, to forgive, to mind, to imagine, to give up употребляется только герундий.

После глаголов to like, to begin, to start, to continue, to intend, а также словосочетаний it’s worth, it’s no use, it’s no good употребляется как герундий, так и инфинитив.

It began raining (it began to rain) early in the morning. – Дождь начался рано утром.

It’s no use talking (to talk) about it. – Бесполезно говорить об этом.

Поскольку формы герундия образуются так же, как и формы причастия, то для правильного перевода необходимо уметь распознавать их. Герундий можно узнать по формальным признакам:

1. Перед герундием может стоять предлог (by, on, upon, after, before, in, of, without, about). 

She locked the door before going to bed. – Она закрыла дверь прежде, чем лечь спать.
2. Притяжательное местоимение (my, his, her, its, our, your, their).

She enjoyed his singing. – Она наслаждалась его пением.

3. Существительное в общем падеже или притяжательном.

I had no idea of Tom’s being here. – Я не имел представления, что Том здесь. 

Если формальный признак отсутствует, причастие или герундий распознают по функциям в предложении. Герундий выполняет все функции, в то время как причастие может быть только определением или обстоятельством.

Упражнения:

I. Переведите предложения, содержащие герундий в роли подлежащего.

1. Using the word was his mistake. 2. Making a decision is a complex process. 3. Considering these problems took us much time. 4. Learning without thought is labour lost, thought without learning is perilous (Confucius). 5. Having access to the code was symbolic. 6. Beating a child will do more harm than good. 7. Trying to minimize the importance of the discovery was of no use. 

II. Переведите предложения, уделяя особое внимание герундию в роли определения. 

1. Life is an art of drawing sufficient conclusions from insufficient premises (S. Butler). 2. They established a committee for the purpose of considering the nomenclature. 3. A searching period is an important stage in the process. 4. Stage 1 includes the process of selecting the task. 5. The planning stage is the most important one. 

III. Переведите предложения, содержащие герундий в роли обстоятельства. 

1. Be slow in choosing a friend, slower in changing him. 2. Do not do anything without thinking. 3. Know your own faults before blaming others for theirs. 4. Learn by doing. 5. You cannot make an omelet without breaking eggs. 6. He spoke while watching his opponents. 7. Appetite comes with eating. 8. Upon switching off the current the pressure dropped. 9. On coming home I have a rest. 10. We grow mature through training. 11. You should check the oil before starting the car.  

IV. Переведите предложения, уделяя особое внимание герундию в роли подлежащего, определения и обстоятельства. 

1. The secret of being tiresome is in telling everything (F. Voltaire) 2. Life is a matter of making wise choices-of knowing when to draw the line. 3. He died without leaving either a personal or a political will. 4. They were against postponing the meeting and for going on with the discussion of this problem. 5. We were all for starting the experiment at once. 6. They stopped the experiment without examining the results. 7. Building a new model will be desirable. 8. Doing so removed the possibility of disappointment. 

V. Переведите предложения, в которых дополнение выражено герундием. 

1. This justifies our coming here. 2. They accused him of being a friend of the Pretender. 3. They insisted on postponing the discussion. 4. We succeeded in building a flexible system. 5. He was fond of doing nothing. 6. They were interested in cooperating with us. 7. We shall object to combining the two approaches. 8. They are responsible for doing this work. 8. This resulted in changing the requirements. 

VI. Переведите предложения, в которых герундий играет роль смысловой части сказуемого. 

1. It is no use crying over spilt milk. 2. It is better doing well than saying well. 3. Seeing is believing. 4. They continued experimenting with the substance. 5. It is worth while thinking over the effects. 6. It is no use speaking of it. 7. They couldn’t help seeing the importance of the process. 8. The problem is worth discussing. 9. The book is worth reading. 10. The film is not worth seeing. 11. We cannot help enjoying beautiful things. 

VII. Переведите предложения, содержащие в своем составе герундий в функции дополнения и сказуемого. 

1. Borrowing is not much better than begging (G. Lessing). 2. Research is searching without knowing what you are going to find. 3. He objects to working on Sundays. 4. Several writers succeeded in finding exact solution of the differential equation. 5. The Ministry of Social Welfare stopped paying pensions, the Ministry of Post and Telegraph stopped transmitting cables. 6. Peter insisted upon laying aside all the ceremonial of royalty. 7. The missionaries kept coming back from the Latinized continent. 8. The architects’ aim is using more plastics in interior decoration. 

VIII. Определите форму и функцию герундия в следующих предложениях. Переведите их на русский язык.

a) 1.He finished speaking and sat down. 2. Stop arguing and start working. 3. The children prefer watching TV to reading. 4. Walking is very useful. 5. I had no hope of meeting her here. 6. On seeing her parents the girl laughed. 7. He is thinking of leaving his job and going to America. 8. Did you hear of John’s having been sent abroad? 9. She is looking forward to reading his new book. 10. I don’t enjoy going to the doctor. 11. Grammar is the art of speaking, reading, and writing.

b) 1.There’s no danger of it happening again. 2. He was wakened by someone knocking at the door. 3. Nobody can go on living without some belief. 4. She does not like the thought of leaving you alone.5. I remember my mother laughing at my jokes. 6. There came the sound of the door closing then being locked. 7. On awakening she dressed quickly and left the house.8. Life seemed worth fighting for. 9. Jane sat through her first lesson without saying a word and without paying much attention to the lecture.

IX. Напишите предложения согласно модели.

       Модель: I advise you to read the book. The book is worth reading.

1. Go and see the film. The film … . 2. That’s a good song. …. . 3. Don’t quote this man. He is not worth … . 4. Remember his words. What he says is worth … .

X. Напишите вопросы согласно модели.

Модель: It’s useless to argue with him. What’s the use of arguing with him?

1. It’s no use accusing him. 2. It’s useless to object to it. 3. It’s no use talking, let’s get down to work.

XI. Скажите как можно больше предложений по модели.

Модель: We’ll solve the problem by using this algorithm.

We learn to speak English                                        speaking

We can’t learn a foreign language only                    arguing

One learns to swim                                          by     reading books

You won’t change anything                                       swimming.

You won’t achieve anything                                       shouting

XII. Закончите предложения согласно модели.

Модель: How did you like his singing? – I enjoyed his singing.

1. Would you like to walk a bit? – Not in this rain. I hate … . 2. Do you often talk with young Howard? – He avoids … . 3. The dinner is very good. – Yes. Jane is very good at … .

XIII. Переведите.

1. Он против того, чтобы приглашать менеджера. 2. Он против того, чтобы вы приглашали менеджера. 3. Он против того, чтобы был приглашён менеджер. 4. Избегайте говорить с такими людьми.  5. Она не переставала брать уроки английского. 6. Они мечтают посетить нашу фирму. 7. Эту книгу стоит прочесть. 8. Этот сайт не стоит смотреть. 

Unit 7

§ 1. Согласование времен

Правило согласования времен в английском языке представляет определенную зависимость времени глагола в придаточном предложении от времени глагола в главном предложении. В русском языке такой зависимости не существует.

Основные положения согласования времен

1. Если глагол-сказуемое главного предложения стоит в настоящем или будущем времени, то сказуемое придаточного предложения может стоять в любом времени, требуемом по смыслу.

he studies English.

He says 
he studied English.



he will study English.

2. Если сказуемое главного предложения стоит в прошедшем времени, то сказуемое придаточного предложения должно стоять в одном из прошедших времен. 

a) Present → Past (на русский язык переводится глаголом в настоящем времени)

He said he studied English. – Он сказал, что он изучает английский.

b) Past Simple → Past Perfect (на русский язык переводится глаголом в прошедшем времени)

He said he had studied English. – Он сказал, что он изучал английский.

c) Future → Future-in-the-Past (на русский язык переводится глаголом в будущем времени)

He said he would study English. – Он сказал, что он будет изучать английский. 

В ряде случаев правило согласования времен не соблюдается:

1. Если сказуемое придаточного предложения выражено модальными глаголами must, should, ought to и инфинитивом:

I knew he must visit his sick friend.

2. Если сказуемое придаточного предложения выражает общеизвестный факт:

The pupils were told that the Earth goes round the Sun.

§2. Прямая и косвенная речь

Правило согласования времен особенно часто соблюдается в косвенной речи, т.е. когда мы своими словами пересказываем содержание того, что было сказано другими.

При преобразовании утвердительных предложений из прямой речи в косвенную производятся следующие изменения:

1. может употребляться союз that (что);

2. глагол to say, за которым следует дополнение, заменяется глаголом to tell;

3. изменяются времена глаголов в соответствии с правилами согласования времен; 

4. изменяются местоимения в зависимости от смысла;

5. заменяются наречия места и времени:

now – then

today – that day

tomorrow – the next day

yesterday – the day before

the day after tomorrow – two days later

the day before yesterday – two days before

next year – the following year

last year – the previous year

ago – before

here – there

this – that

these – those

He said, “I shall do it tomorrow”. – He said that he would do it the next day.

He said, “I can speak to you now”. – He said he could speak to me then.

Вопросительные предложения.

Общие вопросы вводятся союзами if или whether (ли). Порядок слов вопросительного предложения заменяется  порядком слов утвердительного предложения. 

He asked me, “Do you know my telephone number?” – He asked me if I knew his telephone number.

Специальные вопросы вводятся тем же вопросительным словом, с которого начинается прямая речь. Порядок слов вопросительного предложения заменяется  порядком слов утвердительного предложения.

He asked me, “When will you come to my place?” –He asked me when I would come to his place.

При преобразовании из прямой речи в косвенную глаголов в повелительном наклонении, они остаются в форме инфинитива. Глагол to say меняется на to ask (просить), to tell (велеть), to order (приказать).  

He said to me, “Give me your pen”. – He asked me to give him my pen.
Упражнения:

I. Переведите на русский язык.

1. He said that he was busy. 2. I thought he had left Minsk and lived in Moscow. 3. I didn’t know that you could draw. 4. I said that you needn’t go there. 5. I was sure that your friend was writing a new play. 6. I was sure that you would be here. 7. I thought that the article had been translated. 8. I was sure that they would be given this work. 9. She said that she didn’t understand this text. 10. I knew that she had stayed at the University after classes.

II. Преобразуйте следующие предложения из прямой речи в косвенную.

1. He said: “I’m going away tomorrow, mother.” 2. He says: “We have finished our work.” 3. She will say: “I’ll do it at once.” 4. Roger said: “I’ve been in London for a month but I haven’t had time to visit the Tower.” 5. She said: “Nothing grows in my garden. It never gets any sun.” 6. Helen says: ”I met him last year.” 7. I remarked: “It isn’t so foggy today as it was yesterday.” 8. They said: “We have a lift but very often it doesn’t work.” 9. My friend said: “From the window of my flat I can see the river.” 10. She said: “You can keep the book if you like, Joan.” 11. The stranger said: “I’ll sit here till she comes in, but I hope she won’t be late.” 12. Peter said: “I’ll move to a new flat next month.” 13. He says: “I want to speak to you.” 14. She said: “ My sister is going to Moscow tomorrow.” 15. My friend said to me: “I’ll be here in half an hour.” 16. He said to me: “I have never been here before.” 17. I said: “I was working hard all the time.” 18. She said to me: “I have been waiting for you since 5 o’clock.” 19. He said: “I sent them a telegram two days ago.” 20. They said: “Our son was ill yesterday.”

III. Преобразуйте следующие вопросительные предложения в косвенную речь.

A. 

1. I said to him, “Do you know any foreign language?” 2. Olga said to him, “Did you enjoy the party?” 3. They said to me, “Are you going to join us?” 4. This man said to us, “Have you ever been to the North Pole?” 5. She said to her sister, “Did you finish your letter yesterday?” 6. He said to me, “Will you be at home tonight?” 7. The teacher said to her pupils, “Are you listening to me?” 8. The stranger said, “Is it going to rain?” 9. Peter said to Helen, “Are you free?” 10. I said to them, “Will you come to my place tomorrow?”

B.

1. He asked, “Who put salt in my coffee?” 2. The teacher asked, ”Why is Petrov absent?” 3. He asked me, “Where were you last night?” 4. She asked us, “Do you understand what I mean?” 5. He asked us, “Who will come to the cinema with me?” 6. I asked her, “How did you do it?” 7. She asked me, “How long have you been studying English?” 8. His father asked him, “Where are you going?” 9. I asked her, “When will you write your mother?” 10. John asked me, “How long have you been married?”

IV. Преобразуйте следующие повелительные предложения из прямой речи в косвенную.

1. I advised her, “Don’t eat too much.” 2. His wife said, “Write to me as soon as you can.” 3. His mother said, “Don’t forget your sandwiches.” 4. She said, “Don’t go near the water, children.” 5. He said, “Be careful crossing roads.” 6. I begged, “Make coffee a bit stronger.” 7. She told him, “Don’t take your coat off. We are going out again.” 8. He said, “Remember that they drive on the left in England.” 9. They advised me, “Don’t listen to him. He is a liar.” 10. She said to the girl, “Don’t cry! Everything will be all right.”

V. Преобразуйте предложения в косвенную речь, обращая внимание на модальные глаголы.

1. She said, “You mustn’t come in without knocking.” 2. He told me, “Your ticket must cost 5 pounds.” 3. Notice reads, “Dogs must be kept on a lead.” 4. His father said, “You should work harder next term.” 5. The mother said, “You mustn’t play with knives, children.” 6. I warned, “You needn’t get up till night tomorrow.” 7. He said, “After the lecture I have to go home quickly.” 8. She said, “You should try to repair your chair.” “I can, but nothing will come of it”, answered the boy. 9. He said to me, “You should eat more fruit.” 10. She said, “I can’t go there now.”

VI. Переведите следующие предложения в косвенную речь, используя слова в скобках.

   Образец:  Joe said, “Please come to my party.” (invite) – Joe invited me to come to his party.

1. My teacher said, “You should be more punctual.” (advise) 2. The judge said, “You must pay a fine.” (order) 3. Nick said, “Don’t touch that hot pot!” (warn) 4. Sue said to me, “Don’t forget to call me.” (remind) 5. The police officer said, “Put your hands on top of your head!” (order the thief) 6. My neighbour said, “You may use the phone.” (allow) 7. Mr. Hart said, “Tom, could you please open the door for me?” (ask) 8. The doctor said, “Take a deep breath.” (tell the patient) 9. The Smiths said, “Would you like to join us for dinner?” (invite) 10. Alice said to her roommate, “Don’t forget to lock the door.” (warn)

§3. Условные предложения

Сложноподчиненные условные предложения состоят из двух частей: главного предложения и придаточного предложения условия. Придаточное предложение выражает условие совершения действия, главное – следствие, вытекающее из этого условия. Соединяются они союзом if (если).

I. Условные предложения I типа.

Выражают реальные, осуществимые условия, относящиеся к настоящему или будущему времени.

If + Present Simple + shall/will +V    

If the weather is good, we shall go to the country. – Если погода будет хорошая, мы поедем за город. 

II. Условные предложения II типа.

Выражают маловероятные или нереальные предположения, относящие к настоящему или будущему времени. На русский язык предложения переводятся сослагательным наклонением, т.е. глаголом в прошедшем времени с частицей бы. 

If + Past Simple + should/would +V    

If Helen knew Ivanov’s address, she would write him a letter. – Если бы Елена знала адрес Иванова, она написала бы ему письмо. 

Глагол to be в придаточном предложении имеет форму were для всех лиц единственного и множественного числа. 

If he were here, he would help us. – Если бы он был здесь, он бы помог нам. 

If I were you, I should go to the doctor at once.  – Если бы я был на Вашем месте, я бы сразу же пошел к врачу. 

III. Условные предложения III типа.

Выражают предположения, относящиеся к прошедшему времени, и являющиеся поэтому невыполнимыми. 

If + Past Perfect + should/would +have +V3    

If he had seen you yesterday, he would have told you about it. – Если бы он увидел тебя вчера, он бы рассказал тебе об этом. 

Сослагательное наклонение употребляется также в других типах придаточных предложений:

1) подлежащих (it’s necessary, it’s important…) 

It is necessary that he should go there. – Необходимо, чтобы он пошел туда. 

2) дополнительных:

а) если сказуемое главного предложения выражено глаголами to suggest, to propose, to order, to demand, to insist, to request:

He suggests that I should take a leave. – Он предлагает, чтобы я взял отпуск.

б) после глагола в главном предложении: 

I wish I knew his address. – Жаль, что я не знаю его адрес.

3) Цели (so that, that, lest):

They wrote a letter lest she should forget her promise. – Они написали ей письмо, чтобы она не забыла о своем обещании. 

Упражнения:

I. Определите тип условного предложения.

1. We should play football if it were not raining. 2. Carry would have played her part better if she had been a true actress. 3. If I have time, I shall watch TV in the evening. 4. If you had worked hard during the academic year, you would have never failed at the exam. 5. If she were not so busy, she would come and see us. 6. If you had warned me, nothing would have happened. 7. If I am in town, I shall visit you. 8. If you had taken a taxi, you would have got to the airport in time. 9. It is necessary that you should train more. 10. It is desirable that they should take part in the work of the conference. 11. It is important that you should do this work yourself. 12. The teacher demands that the pupils shouldn’t be late for classes. 13. I wish he were in Minsk now. 14.  I wish she had taken part in the concert. 15. I wish I were you.

II. Поменяйте форму глагола в следующих предложениях. Отнесите действие сначала к настоящему или будущему, а затем к прошлому.

1. He will come to you if you ring him up. 2. I shall read this book if you give it to me. 3. They will invite him if they see him. 4. She will buy this dress if she has money. 5. If the water is not cold, we shall swim. 6. You will not be late if you get up earlier. 7. I shall go with you if it doesn’t rain. 8. If you send him a telegram, he will return in time. 9. If they work hard, they will pass all the exams well. 10. If I have my leave in August, I shall go to the sea.

III. Поставьте глагол в скобках в нужную форму в придаточном предложении.

1. If I (to know) his language, I would speak to him. 2. If you (to like) coffee, I would make you some. 3. If you (to see) him today, he would have told you the news. 4. If I (to be) you, I should act differently. 5. If we (to have) money, we shall travel. 6. It is important that you (to know) this. 7. If he (not to work) hard, he wouldn’t have made progress. 8. If it (to snow) tomorrow, we shall go skiing.

IV. Поставьте глагол в скобках в нужную форму в главном предложении.

1. If I were free tomorrow, I (to go) to the concert. 2. If I am free, I (to go) to the concert. 3. If I knew that, I (to go) there immediately. 4. If she had come to town yesterday, she (to take) part in the conference. 5. If he comes here in time, we (to take) him with us. 6. If I had known that you were in hospital, I (to visit) you. 7. If I knew that the traffic lights were red, I (to stop). 8. If it is true, the newspaper (to print) this story.

V. Закончите следующие предложения.

1. If he had eaten less … 2. If he had taken my advice … 3. If I were not so lazy … 4. If he saw my mother … 5. You would have looked better if … 6. I should be angry if … 7. I should be glad if … 8. If I were you … 9. If I had got up earlier this morning … 10. We should have bought a car if …

VI. Поставьте глаголы в скобках в нужную форму.

1. If you (to bring) me a book, I should have read it. 2. If he doesn’t ring me up, I (not to come). 3. If he (not to write) to me, I shouldn’t have answered him. 4. I wish I (to have) a tie to match my suit. 5. The doctor suggested that she (to have) a long rest in the Crimea. 6. If the weather (to be) rainy, we shall stay at home. 7. If I (to be) you, I should have apologized to her. 8. You wouldn’t have so many accidents if you (to drive) slowly. 9. If he were in, he (to answer) the phone. 10. If you pass your exam, we (to have) a celebration. 11. I shouldn’t have taken your umbrella if I (to know) that it was the only one you had. 12. If he knew that it was dangerous, he (not to come). 13. I shouldn’t have believed it if I (not to see) it with my own eyes. 14. He would take me with him if I (to be) ready. 15. He will wait for you if you (to be) late. 16. If I were you, I (not to go) there. 17. He would have been the best pupil in the class if he (to work) harder. 18. We (to stay) at home, if we had known he was coming. 19. If you (to stay) here a little longer, you will see a film. 20. If you had arrived a little earlier, you (to find) me there.

VII. Скажите, что бы Вы делали в этих нереальных ситуациях.

1. What you would do if you knew that atomic war would break out tomorrow?

2. What you would do if you would get a million of roubles?

3. What three wishes would you choose for yourself if you knew that they would come true?

VIII. Переведите на английский язык.

1. Если бы вчера была хорошая погода, мы бы пошли на прогулку. 2. Если бы я увидела ее завтра, я бы спросила ее об этом. 3. Если бы он пришел, я был бы рад. 4. Если бы вы знали грамматику лучше, вы бы не сделали столько ошибок в упражнениях. 5. Если бы вы дали мне хороший словарь, я потратил бы меньше времени. 6. Я буду очень огорчен, если они не придут. 7. Если бы я был моложе! 8. Жаль, что ее нет сейчас дома. 9. Важно, чтобы студенты участвовали в этой работе. 10. Я предлагаю, чтобы они обсудили эту проблему.

§ 4. Оборот it is … that

Когда хотят сделать особое ударение на каком-нибудь члене предложения, его помещают в начале предложения между it is (was) и that (who, whom).

I met his sister in the park.

1) если надо выделить подлежащее, т.е. то, что именно я, а не кто-нибудь другой, встретил его сестру в парке, то I ставится между it was … who:

It was I who met his sister in the park. – Именно я встретил его сестру в парке.

2) если надо выделить обстоятельство места in the park, то оно ставится между it was… that:

It was in the park that I met his sister. – Именно в парке я встретил его сестру.

3) если надо выделить дополнение his sister, то его ставят между it was … whom:

It was his sister whom I met in the park. – Именно его сестру я встретил в парке.

При помощи оборота it is … that можно также выделить придаточное предложение.

I told him the news after he had returned from Moscow.

It was after he had returned from Moscow that I told him the news. – Только после того, как он вернулся из Москвы, я рассказал ему новости.  

Упражнения:

Выделите подчеркнутые члены предложения и придаточные предложения, применяя оборот It is … that (who).
1. The Russian scientist Ladygin invented the electric lamp. 2. After the Great October Socialist Revolution the great Russian scientist Mitchurin was given every opportunity to put his ideas into practice. 3. His brother brought me the letter an hour ago. 4. I shall discuss the matter with our legal adviser. 5. The equipment was to be delivered in April. 6. The shipowners are responsible for the damage to the goods. 7. The house was destroyed by the fire. 8. The Moscow University was founded in 1755. 9. Glinka composed the opera “Ivan Susanin”. 10. Helen learns English at the Institute. 11. My father often tells me stories about the sea. 12. Nick told me the news. 13. The gravitation makes the satellites move round the Earth. 14. Yesterday I met him at the Institute. 15. My brother entered the University last year. 16. Nobody visited her last year. 17. Three of the students got excellent marks. 18. He was seen crossing Queen Street. 19. At 9 o’clock next morning he went to the station.  20. They work at this problem now.
§ 5. Структура вопросительных предложений
В английском языке существует четыре основных типа вопросительных предложений:

I. Общие вопросы (General questions), которые ставятся с целью получения утвердительного или отрицательного ответа. Для общего вопроса характерен обратный порядок слов:

1. вспомогательный глагол (или модальный, или глагол-связка),

2. подлежащее (существительное или местоимение),

3. смысловой глагол (или дополнение).

Do you like ice-cream? – Yes, I do.

Can you speak French? – No, I can’t.

Are you a student? – Yes, I am.

Have you brought a new book? – No, I have not.

II. Специальные вопросы (Special questions) задают к определенным членам предложения. Они всегда начинаются с вопросительных слов: Who? Whose? Whom? What? Which? When? Where? Why? How? How many (much)? How long?

Специальные вопросы строятся на основе структуры общего вопроса:

1. вопросительное слово,

2. вспомогательный глагол (или модальный, или глагол-связка),

3. подлежащее,

4. смысловой глагол,

5. дополнение,

6. обстоятельство (места, времени, образа действия и т. д.).

What do you like to read?

When can we go to the library?

Why are you so sad?

How many books have you bought?

Примечание:

1.В специальных вопросах к подлежащему порядок слов остается таким же, как в утвердительных предложениях:

He gave her a present. – Who gave her a present? 

The present will be expensive. – What will be expensive?

Однако в простом настоящем времени глагол-сказуемое стоит в 3 лице единственном числе:

Who wants to go to the cinema? 

Who lives in this house?

2. Если при вопросительном слове есть предлог, то он обычно ставится в конце предложения:

Who(m) did you talk with?

What do you want to take it for?

III. Альтернативные вопросы (Alternative questions) ставятся с целью предложить собеседнику сделать выбор между двумя предметами, действиями, качествами и т. д. Структурно этот вопрос строится на основе двух общих вопросов, соединенных союзом or (или):

Do you like coffee or tea?

Will you go with me or will you stay at home?

IV. Разделительные вопросы (Disjunctive questions или Tail questions) задают с целью получить подтверждение высказываемого в предложении. Структурно разделительный вопрос состоит из двух частей:

- повествовательного предложения,

- краткого вопроса, состоящего из местоимения, соотнесенного с подлежащим повествовательной части, и вспомогательного или смыслового глагола (если сказуемое выражено глаголами to be или to have). Вспомогательный или смысловой глагол согласуется со сказуемым повествовательной части вопроса.

You are a pupil, aren’t you?

Если повествовательная часть утвердительна по форме, то вопрос имеет отрицательную форму:

Is she a student, isn’t she?

The train leaves at 9 o’clock, doesn’t it?

Если повествовательная часть отрицательна по форме, то вопрос имеет утвердительную форму:

You don’t go to school every day, do you?

She didn’t translate the text, did she?

I. Задайте общие вопросы к следующим предложениям.

1. He speaks Chinese very well. 2. These boys like reading travel stories. 3. These books were published in Moscow. 4. He wrote them a letter from Sochi. 5. The weather will be fine tomorrow. 6.  All books must be returned to the library before the 1st of July. 7. This man can play chess very well. 8. He has a car. 9. He has been working hard for the last two months. 10. He is working in the library.

II. Задайте специальные вопросы к выделенным словам.

1. He wore a straw hat. 2. The cover of this book is made of leather. 3. They invited my sister and me. 4. Sugar cane grows in warm climates. 5. These students want to take part in the expedition. 6. Helen is my sister. 7. He is a bookkeeper. 8. The distance between that village and Moscow is   60 kilometers. 9. At 9 o’clock next morning he went to the station. 10. There are twelve students in our group.

III. Задайте альтернативные вопросы к следующим предложениям.

1. Your friend is a doctor. 2. I am leaving tonight. 3. She went for a walk with Peter. 4. Moscow University was founded in 1755. 5. He works at the library every Saturday. 6. They went to Kiev by train. 7. Our teacher is speaking English now. 8. War and Peace was written by Leo Tolstoy. 9. I shall go Italy next week. 10. The bus leaves at 10.

IV. Задайте разделительные вопросы к следующим предложениям.

1. You returned him the book yesterday. 2. The Petrovs go to the theatre every week. 3. He doesn’t look well. 4. Helen has received permission to go there. 5. The examination wasn’t difficult. 6. You don’t want to read this book. 7. I shall see you tomorrow. 8. My friend will not come today. 9. He can speak French. 10.  The students are working in the library now.

V. Задайте вопросы всех типов к следующим предложениям.

1. Last night they went to the theatre. 2. There are many flowers in our garden in summer. 3. He usually makes many mistakes in his dictations. 4. By that time his sister had done her homework. 5. The document was signed by the President. 6. They work at this problem now. 7. English is spoken in many countries of the world. 8. I have been to Paris this spring. 9. They will move to a new flat next month. 10. You should learn the rules.




find,         fall,          keep,          leave,         meet,          sell,


hurt,         cost,         give,          write          teach,          put
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